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68.

29e2.46. From S.I.S, with memorandum on the CORBY case.

69.

Telegram (No., 184) from New York re press reactions tp CORBY case. 69a.

70.

2142, 46, Telegrams (Nos. 186-7) frox New York re LUNAN, WILLSHER and
' NIGHT INGALE.

T1.

Telegrams (Nos. 196-8) from New York re BOYER, ADAMS and
NIGHTINCALE.

72,

Telegram (Now455) to New York re PRIMROSE's diary.

73
Daily Worker cartoon on Russian reply to Canadian statement.

The
Telegrams (Nos. 201=3) from New York re WOIKIN, BOYER & SHUGAR.

75
Telegram (No. 205) from New York re Fred ROSE.
76.
From High Commissioner's Office with copies of telegrams from

Exgernal Affairs, Ottawa.

77

Telegram (No.216) from New York re public reaction to activities
of Royal Cammission.

78.

26, 2.46. Telegrams (Nos. 218-20) from New York re interrogations of ROSER,
WILLSHER and POLAND.

79.
27.2.46. Telegram (No.224) fram New York further to 69a.
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80,

27¢2.46. Telegram (No.225) fram New York re SOBOLEFF's statement.

81,

27.2.46. ™elegram (No.226) from New York re PRIMROSE and WALLACE.

82.

27.2.46.  Telegrems (Mos. 228-9) fram New York re interrogatdions of
WILLSHEFR, LUNAN and GERSON.

83.

28.2.46. Telegrams (Nos. 238-40) from New York re interrogation of
MAZFRALL.

84

Tolegrams (Nos. 24,2-3) from New York further to 7%.

85,
Telegrmm (Nos 2L4) fram New York re Sie.

86.

From F.0.with record of meeting re actian over PRIMROSE.

87

Telegran (No. 252-3) from New York pe LUNAN's statermant,

88.
Telegram (No.254) from New York further to 8ia.

89.

Telegrams 257 to 263 with precise details of procedure.

90.
Telegrams 264~5 re arrests. - -

M.

Telegram 266 with further details on procedure.

92.

Tels gram 267 - information by LUNAN and MAZERALL ani evidence
by COCKCROFT. ' .
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93.
Telegram 268 with exact time of Canddian arrests.

9%.
Telegram 278 further to 91a and 93a.

95.
Tele gram 498 reguesting information on WALLACE.

. 96.

(?)2.3 46, Telegram 503 re amendment of Commission's proposed reporte.

97.
2,3.46. Telegrams 269-77 with draft of repart by Royal Commission.

98,
3e3eLkbe  Telegrams 279-80 re action against WILLSHER.

99,
3¢3046e Telegrams 282-3 giving information oy BOYER and GERSON.

120.

3. 346, Telegram 284 e coordination of arrest of PRDMRCSE.

o d

101.

30 30 Ube Telegram 285 re possible change in time of arrests.

102.

3e3e46. Telegram 502 withdrawing stgéestion that aotion be delayed,

103.

Telegram 286 re time of arrests in Canada.

104.

Telegfam 289 re finding of secret documents.

105.

Note from M.1.5. Liaison Section, Paris, re Trench interest in case,

106,

. 5: 346  Telegrams 299, 300, re WITCZAK, ROSE, RABINOWITZ.
! Wy
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Telegram 301 with further reference to 104a.

108.

Telegram 514 to RCMP re questioning of BOYER on GRIERSON.

109.

Letter from F.3.I. re Alexander HESS,

110.

Telegram 306 re interrogation of WIGHTINGALE.

111,

Note to S,L.B.3. re note at 105a,

112,

Telegram 305 re proposed approach to C. Wilfred JENKS.

113,

P.2.2., enclosing letter from Childs, with offer of information
from GIIBBERI‘.

Telegram 315 fuarther te 410a.

Telegram 314 re SCHAVCHENKO.

Telegram 310 re LINTON.

117.

Telegram 522 to New York re RADO network.

118,

F. 2, 0. minute to A.D.F, re S.A.P. bomb.

119
Telegram from New York (No.330) re WITGCZAK.

120.

Telegrams 323-4 from New York re BOYER.

124,

Telegrams 321-2 from New York re CORBY case.
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12,3, 46,

150 3. 10-6.
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122

Telegram 529 to New York re JENKS.

123,

Telagram 528 to New York re 104a,

124,

Telegrams 331-4 from New York re Canadian trials.

125.

Telegram 335 from New York re BOYER and SHUGAR,

126.

Telegram 338 from New York re SHUGAR's testimony.

127,

Telegran 341 from New York re progress of interrogations..

128,

Telegram 342 fram New York re WALLACE.

1290

Telegram 355 from New York re NIGHTINGALE snd BOYER.

130.

Telegram 347 from New York re adjournment of commission.

131,

'M' report on information from Miriam GRAHAM.

132,

Telegram 357 from New York re CORBY case.

133,

Telegram No. 44 for RCMP re MAY.

134
Te PF.0O. encloaing suggested answor to 124a.

135.

Telegram 363 from New York re second interim repart.
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135,

Telegram 368 from New York re arrest of Fred ROSE,
137.

Telegram 370 from New York re ROSE.

138,

Prom Dominions Office enclosing telegrams from Canads re CORBY ocase.

139

Receipt for Top Seoret document returned by F.0.

140.

15.3.46. Telegram 371 from New York re arrest of ROSE.

144,

15¢ 30460 Telegram 380 from New York re re ROSE.

142,

156 3e !¥60 From 5,X.5 re atatement in "Epoque" ¢

143,
160 3» 46e  Telegram 381 from New York re WALLACE,

144,

18,3046 From Office of Canadisn Aigh Commissioner with telegrams fram
Department of External Affairs.

145,
Telegram 391 from New York re PRIMROSE's evidenoe and visit of D.P.P.

146,

18.3.46, Telegram 562 to New York further to 123a..

147.

Letter to S.I.S. with draft telegramsre information at 131a.

1.9
20.3.46. Telegram 565 to RCMP re visit of D.P.P. to Canada.

150.

20.3.46, To0 S.I.S. in reply to 142a,
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152,

Telegram 406 from New York re SMITH, ROSE and BOYER.

1

| 153.
Telegran 407 from New York re JENKS, RABINOWITCH and VITCZAK.

154

Telegram 411 from New York re CORBY's evidence.

155.

Telegrem 413 from New York re ROSE.

156.

Telegram 414 fram New York re ADANMS,

157

' Telegram 419 fram New York re CORBY's evidsnce.

158.

Telegranm 425 from New York re reaction to CORBY's evidence. .

159.

Telegram 426 from New York re evidence to be given by Mwnro.

160,

Telegram 432 from New York re POPOV.

161.

Telegram 593 to New York re connection of French CsPe with
joviet network in Canada.

162,

Telegram 433-5 from New York re progress of case.

163.

Telegram 436 from New York re POPOV.

164.

Telegram 438 fram New York re arrivel of D.P.P. and Col ‘ussen.
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166.

Telegram 443 from New York re ROSE, WILLSHER, WOIKIN, LUNAN
and MAZ-RALL.

1 67.

Teregram LiJ from New York re MAY case.

168.

Telegram 445 from New York re ADAMS, BENNING and CHAFMAN,

169.

P.2.0, notes r intarvricw with GINSBERT.
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TOP SECRET.

No. 445 of March 28th.

A. ADAMS has given testimony for day and a half and nothing of
value was obtained although his guilt could be infered from his

evasions, P b“’ “‘17"

B. In order that neither)}DAMSJnor BFNNING, if they are charged
and released on bail by end of week ,ycan warn Agatha CHAPMAN, who
now appears as no unimportant figure, she is to be brought before
Commission on Friday by subpoena.

C. Yesterday Montreal Gazette published facsimiles of CORBY

documents referring BERMAN's contact in London. Paper obtainecd

these surrept:.tiously fro :%Defence Counsel. In view exception

QT oy

made in CHAPMAN' A I have strongly urged Commission Counsel

that Samuel BURMAN, whom we tentatively believe to be individual

in question, should alsoc be subpoenaed immediately before he has
time to work out detailed answers to questions which he wust now
realise will be put to him. If programme were left as (?at present)
?intended (?it would be) at least a fortnight before his testimony

could be heard.

My immediately following telegram.
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No. 446 of March 23th.

My immediately preceding telegram.

D. Counsel have agreed desirability of action I requested and

I hope that BURMAN mey be brought before Commission in a few

days under subpoena and questioned with special view to obtaining
all possible information concerning his supposed activities in
London.

E. BURMAN is at present in Montreal end this presents some
difficulty in serving a subpoena. I will confirm later whether
or not this can be carried out.

F. I am aware that this is a shot in the dark but feel it might

possibly prove to be of considerable value to M.I.5.
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NEX YORK.
No. 44)s of March 28th.

Following for Hollis from Cussen,
A. Consultations between Director of Public Prosecutions and

Canadian authorities have been proceeding successfully.

B. Director has discussed importance of general policy with

High Commissioner's office and with Ministry of External Affairs.
C. Director has had series of discussions with Minister of
Justice and Counsel to Royﬁl Commission, Commission Counsel

were mainly exercised in mind es to how to obtain proper
consideration of MAY case by Commission without arbitrating

trial of MAY in London. They attach great importance to MAY

case being fully before Commission.

D. Solution has now been found by Director giving evidence
photostat copy of MAY's statement as correct copy of original

and produces copy of BURT's deposition which sets out circumstances
in which statement was made. Commission Counsel will undertake
that publication of MAY's statement will not take place in Canads
until his triel in London is completed.

E. Royal Commission hopes to present its final report to Canadian
Governmment by April 28th but report will not be ready for printing
until some ten days later, by which time it is hoped MAY's trial

in London will be over. If this is not the case suitable steps
will be taken to avoid inclusion of statement in report.

F. DPlease repeat to Vincent EVANS, Agsistant Director of Fublic

Prosecutions.
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TOP SECRET.

No. 443 March 28th.

4 ('<?\?a’l .

A. To all intents and purposeifROSE ﬂas been committed

for trial though there is still one mihor formality to be

gone through under Quebeg law.

]

- bod L :
B. EE;LLSHEéLF%BI » LUNAN and MAZERALL eappear today for
e e - CUNPN I PV
preliminary hearing in Ottewa and at moment it is hoped
that documents can be used and that CORBY's evidence will

not repeat not be required,

© Crown Copyright
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iseussed at considerable length, later in

won, and 1 feel 1 need ndt take too
much\time in discussing any aspect of the
meacur® at this tune, I expeet the Minister
of Fmamge (Mr. llsley) will introduee  the
necossary Yegislation, and at such time will
sprik at ~8me length upon it

My hon. f§yend touched briefly upon finan-
cial and trad§ matters which, 1« T have al-
rcady =mid, areNireetly related to the burdget.
I belicve we n¥ght well defer consideration
of these mutters <1niil we are diseussing the
budget.

Mr. Sweaker, I\\nught. take econsiderable
time in feviewing olger matters disenssed by
iy hon, friend; but, as he has said.—and [
believe T have his wordg before me—the mut-
ter which above all ofgere occupies the ut-
tention of the people t&day is the deplor-
able question of espronag and disclosure of
seeret anformation to a forf§ygn power which
2o unfortunately has come toSthe fore.

Huaving 1o mind what my Non. friend has
sard, nuuely that it s attradyng keen at-
tention throughout the country, INelt 1 should
take 1t up at the earliest opportifyuty. With
that in mund [ .nnounced a duy two 1go
that 1 intended 1o deal with this mafer when
speaking to the wlddress in reply to thdygpeech
from the throne.

A~ T am about to deal with this tew su
Mr. Speaker, it would [ think, meet with
conventence of all hon, members if vou wou
call 1t six o'clock.

Ai aix oeloeck the house took reeess.

M.»M
After Recess

The house resumed at cight o'clock

Mr. MACKENZIE KING: Mr. Speaker,
on Friday afternoon last I expressed the hope
that hon. members of this house would read
with eare the interim report which had been
presented by the two justicrs of the Svipreme
Court of Canada who were acting as com-
missioners to make an investigation into the
disclosure of sccret information to unauthorized
persons for communieation to a foreign pewer.
This afternoon my hon. {riend, the leader of
the opposition, asked me to take the house
and the country into my confidence with refer-
cnce to matters pertaining to this inv celign-
tion. May I say at the oulset that in this
I am necessarily confronted with one serious
handicap, one to which I have referrcd in a
statement which I have given to the public,
namecly, that the whole matter 1s one which i
sub judice at the present time., For that
reason there is very much that 1 should like
to impart to the house and to the courntry

whieh unfortunutely I will not be uble to
mupart and which canuot be given to the house
or the country until those who huve been
comnmitted for trial have bad their trial and
evidence has been tuken in puiiic upon which
verdicts will be hased.

1 have been askimmg myscll at whar point
one would nocessarily have to draw .o line
with respeet 1o what 1s not perinessihic he-
cause of matters beiug exh judice and, vp 10
what point matters might be discussed quite
frankly. I am right 1 bLeheve in assuming
that anyihing thae taok plwee of whieh 1 had
knowledge up te the inme of the appointme nt
of the rommision and which influrneed the
government in its actien with respees 1o e
coturse 1t took in appointine the commissjon
and in seting on the advice of the connnisaon
in certain particulars would be a m. iter “thoo
I shinudd he quite free to diseuss apenly, ooing
caveful all the tine not to sav anvthino, 1o
thut s possitble that would 1w suy wav pre-
podice the triais that may Iale nicee.

I do not think 1 can do Lotter e -penkimg
to the question ttsclf and wivieg to the s
at ouce some idea of itx vast senifiennes and
importanee than to quate from the frevor o
report of the royal commezmon. T am not dis-
ciosing anvthing that <hould pot be disele-nng
hecause of sub judice reasons if 1 qaol: from
a published report which is in the hands o
all hon. members of parbamen:  Thordivre
I would bring ‘mmediately o il wnintion
of the house the eravity of Jus question and
iie far-reaching -ignificanee  and iarportance
by reading what the commisstoners have said
with respeet to the inquiry they ar holdice,
wiat they have found thus {ar. and whin
they have felt should be given as -0 as
posible to the public. On page 11w the
Jdoeument which was tabled on Fridav last
relating to the proceedings of tuc roval com-
mission will be found the following paragraph:

The evilence establishee that a uetwork of
under<over agents  has  been ~rzamized and
develope! for the purpoee of obtaiung secret
anl comhdestial information particu: arly fooan
employecs of departments und ngeucies of ke
dominion government and {rem an emp! wyee «f
the office of the high commiesi...r ior the
United Kinglom in Canada. The evidence re-
veals tirat thes: operationy were catried on by
certain members of the staff of the Soviet em-
basey at Ottawa under direct instructions from
\[oemw The person directdy in cnarge of theee

one was Calone| Zabatin, military attache
o the embassy, who had as his actite assistants
in this work licwtenant-Calonel Motinov, chiet
assistant military attache, .Lleumn'nt-éol
Rogov. asmietant military ailache air, Major
‘_lokalm'. of the staff of the commercial coun-
wollor of the embuiasy, Lieutenant v, Oone
of the eccretaries of the mi'itary attache as well

as other moemberas of the statf of the miditacy
altache, all of whom, as wall us the agents whom

© Crown Copyright
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they employed in the pursuance of their activi-
tien, were, 1n the intorests of secrecy, known by
under<over names.

In the next paragraph will be found the
following

We have had before us a former employee of
the Ruswnn embassy at Ottawa, Igor Gouzenko,
the ci;‘.h--r olerk of the military attache, who has
desriins] thin vrganization and its functioning,
aml who has produced original documents, the
authentioy of which we accept.

I necd senrcely say that these paragraphs
descrihe as serious o stuation as has existed
in Cunadta at any time.  If the house has had

to wait some little time for the information
which | intend to give 1t this evening, it 13
becanse the government have been only too
catsvious of how serious this situation is and
how far-reacuing its repercussions may be.

Perbape 1 cannot better take the house
tinto myv conhtidence than to begin with an
aceonunt of how | persorally became informed
of thi~ situroon and how the government
became avwawre of at. Hon, members poerhays
recall that when the first seaston of this house
opencd on the Gth of September last we met
i the moming to choose a Speaher and the
procecdmgs were to begin at eleven o'clock.
Hou. members uay huve notjeed that at that
time the house was hept woiting, for o few
mnnutes ab least, before T foumd i possible
to come i Whar deie!d happened was this—
I vas informed that morming by the under-
ol stue for v ernal affairs that
voung man Do the Ro-.in embassy  had
been o the office of b Mmster of Justice
(Mr. St Lawvent) s:kang 1o see the Minster
of Ju-tive. He sald that he ad most import -
AN intanmohion to nopart to the government,
that ot arsdead a situation which threatendd
very seriously conditions in Canada, that it
was an extreme!'v o serious oifuntion and that
wrowasleod o wern the Canadiam people with
respees fo it, e sand that he had in his
posseszion  documenis  which  would  make
wholly  clear what he was saymg and he
wished these documents to be 1o the poszes-
¢iom of the governinent. He =aid that he had
taken these documents from the vaults of
the Russian embassy and alo from among
papers whiclhh he hud collected over a short
titne with a view of making the disclosure
which he now wanted to make.

I was asked what should be done in these
circumstances I replied that 1 thought this
was a case where we could not be too care-
ful or too cautions; that this man represented
that he had come from the Russian embassy ;
that we could not say whether the documents
he had i his posscssion were fabrications or
noi; that we did not know what his own state
of mind might be, or how responsible he was;

[Mr. Mackenzie King.]

secrotary

that we koew nothing of the circumstances
which had caused him to leave the embassy
and come to the government and that [
thought he should be told to go hack to the
embassy  with the papers he had in his
possession.

He biad been anxious to see the Minister of
Justice. He had not seen the Mini<ter of
Jdustico. He told his story to the secretary of
the Minister of Justice, who gave a full
arcount to the under-secretary of otute for
external affuirs, and he gave me the purticulars
which 1 have just mentioned.

What [ felt was most important wus to we
that nothing should be dome which would
catise  the Russinn embassy to behieve thot
Canada had the least suspicion of apything
which was taking place there, or which eculd
Le regarded by them 12 unexpeeted an the
circumstaness,

This advice was given to the man whi: eams,
who- name has been giien in the commisann
r port—-Igor Gouzenko, He wias o cipher ¢l rk
in the Russian embassy, Ho had becn ip the
cmbusey in Ottawa here for some two ye .~
asoctated with the military attache  Prior to
thow two vears he had been for o couple o1
vears in the sseret serviee in the USSR, He
had been trained partienlarly 1w ciphering and
deeiphering messages. Touat, be clumed, was
how he bad gon poscesaon of the doctims nt-
to wlach I have refered.

Perhaps at this pomnt 1 <tould mdheare what
I ~ubwequently learmed  abont Gouzenho's
moveitents, Appamenily he it the embass
aroied <iv-thirty o the  vening F e o
prior to the ons gt which he went fo eall at
the oflice of the Mimzter of Justie. He kit
with the papei- in s posse<icn and went
irtom the embasy 4o Do WP peT
otfices an this ey, Ir was to e Journa! that
he weni ood teld his ctory o oone of the
porsons whom he found in the offiee. He
wanted to see the ediom. The oitor wias naot
present; but 1 an. told, he gave a fairly full
acconnt of what he bchoved the people of
Canada should Kknow, what lin wishedd 10
unpari, nad semed very aaxieas that full
publicity should be givin to the statement
whith he was moking. He claimed that his
purpose was to let the Cunadian people know
of a situation about which he felt they should
know. I understand that though his story
socmed fanlastic—as he had documents with
him—he¢ was told that he should go and -ce
the mounted police, that if he had information
of this kind they were the persons he should
sce.

He went back to his house that night. Next
morning he came to the oflice of the Minister
of Justice. Not secing the Minister of Justice

one «f the
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he then loft for other parts. He had his wife
and little child with Lim. During the course
of the day—I necd not relate all his move-
ments—he visited the office of the crown
prosecutor in the city and spoke there about
his situation, again wishing to give publicity
to the information that he had. During the
afternoon he left his little child with a neigh-
bour to be cared for. while he and his wife
sought to meet others und discuss the situa-
tion with them. Then, at wight, he went to
his home, and when he was there he asked
immediate neighbours, a gentleman and his
wife, if they would be kind emough to look
after hig lhittle child; that he wus very feariul
that. sometling might happen to him that
night, that he felt that by this time it would
have been discovered that he had left the
cmbassy and had taken with him  certain
papi s which were of significance, and that
e might expect to be killed in the course of
the evening unliss he got protection. The
perons in whom he confided his situation took
him into their apartinent along with the httle
chitd and had them all stay in one of the
rooms  Meantime the gentleman whose apart-
meat it was, seing the fear and the dread
which Le had. went to the city police andd
told thoin of the sitmation and wked that pro-
tron hould be given ta i, Arrangeni- nts
wer a0 howith the police to be in the near

Jdeinity Jest thare should be any incidents,

Abvat midnighe there wus an incident. His
apartment wuz entersd by four perons—I
helivve e maintains that it was broken inio.
At uny rate, the four persons who entered the
apartment were from the Russiun embassy or
connectod with 1t, The city polive wantid to
know from them just why they were ther,
They cluimed immurnity, being members of
‘e embasey. Nooarrestz were made. They
woro allowed to nturn to the embuassy. In
e meantime, Gouzenko had  been  =afe,
sorreler]l as he was in the other apartment.
Ister in the evening another visit was muade
t b1~ apartment, but pothing came of it
n- Gouzenko asked the ety polire 1f they
cou'd put him in contact with the Royal
(:r-an Mourted PPolice. He said that he
had informuation which he thought was of
importance to Canada and, indeed, to his
own country if it could be diselosed, anid
that he would hke to give this information
to the government through the police.

He wus promised that he would be taken
to the mounted police where he could tell
hiz story. Later in the morning he was tuken
to the mounted police, and he gave a full
statement, producing the documents that he
had in his possession, and asked for protection

for his life and the lives of his wife and little
child. They wcre given protection by the
police.

The documents were then very carefully
studied together with other information he
gave.

l.ot me repeat from the outset 1 felt
that the situation with which we were con-
frontedd was one that could not be viewed
too circumspectly. I felt we must make sure
what type of persun Gouzcnko was, und what
the motive wus that prompted his action. |
have come to the conelusiou, from the state-
ment which he gave to the police, that hi:
motives were just as he him=lf deserihed
them, a desire to expose u condition which
he thought was ntolerable and which was
likely to work mjurv to our counttv and to
his own country ax we!l. To the police he made
a very carclul ~tatement 1n which he suid
that. he had been in Cunada for a couple: of
vears, had been immensely -urpnsed whlen he
came here to see the freodom of ihe people,
the way in which demoeraiie  anstitutions
worked in this country. He :aid that Lo had
been very greatly impro--«d with the wuay in
which general elections were coudueied, the
Jdifferent politieal pariies <peaking freely 1 the
open, having candidates vwho oppo-ed one an-
other and the hke. It impre~cd him dscplyvin
contra~t. with what he bLud seen 'n hi- own
country. He said he felt that, havine witiessed
for two vears what this country wa- 1 'nr 1o
assistits Wl with muaitions, money and Youod,
and 1 every other way, ard . the ~une
time affording to himzelf and 1o othe s every
facility that could he extended in the way of
frvedom, he enald not ~tund 1t verv el
longer, and he fad made up his w0 g,
regardless of what jhe consequenc: ~ might be,
even 1f bt were life t=elf, he owad 1t
the poople of this countrv und 1o b= own
people to reveal the comwdition of affairs us b
had come to know it ¢ =t hund  And
having made up his mind an this wav, he
then began fo gather some of 1 documents
which he felt would be absolu'ly convineing
in themselves if made public.

I wishi the house to note thut his actions
corresponded with that profession. He did not
come to the government in the first instance.
He went to a newspaper oftice, and he paid
a second visit to a newspaper officec with a
view to having the documents published and
having his story made public. Hec later came
to the police to give them the full story,
and the documents which were in lis
POsSession.

Une may lake what view one wishes of
Gouzenko. I have stated iy impressions
as gnathered from what evidence has come
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———— L L o e .

hefore me Bat what 1 attueh  importnnee
to in spedhing to the liouse to-night s not
the individon! and  what he :aid but  the
documents which were produced. Some of
dlocaments are iu the handwriting of
«ame of the perscon: who have heen examined
by the commi-won, while some sre n the
nature of transeriptions; many of them are
cipher mesages  that have been sent bael
and  furth; some are messages that hmve
come Trom Britwn to Cansdn nnd pasced on
from Canada to the USSR, amd there -
mueh that relates to plans and records that
have to do with the manufacture of muni-
tions, explosives and the hike,

It i« upon the docoments which are in
posses i of the government now. and which
will by made public s the truds proceed,
that ~veh subcequent action ss was taken by
myrelf wned iy colleagnes are based, We
hove not weted vpon wearsay.  We have taken
the toport: whieh have been mude to us by
the police, and which are verified and authen-
Oeated by the documents themeelves.

The o documents  diselo~¢  unong  other
thines that Canada wie hemg made: o base to
seeure pformation on matiers of vervy great
and grave eoncoern to the United States and
nlro 10 Great Britain; that mmformation was
bemg sought throngh agents here with respect
to meny matters that were of the ulmost
cuneern 1o Cannda, the United States and the
Uritvd Kingdom

Pk for myself personally  because |
must ke the main responsibility.  In fouet, 1
am prepared to lake the whole responsibilily
if neeessury for the steps that hive been taken,
though  the Minister of Justiee and myself
were logether i considering and dealing with
the questions that had 1o be considern d.
There come tunes. however, m s govern-
ment when, sooncr or later, the decisions as
to whatl coursc 1 to be taken hws 10 be mnde
by the head of the admimstration.

I readized at th > outset that this was no small
netter, not a domestie matter only, by any
means, We could not ignore the evidenee Lhat
there were in onr pathlie seeviee o number of
trusled emplovers who wore giving information
to akents of n foreign power to be of aasistance
to the foreen power and that bt was chearly
neeceasary that there shotld be an investiga-
hion. 1t was inevitable that an imvestagation
would have ropercussions, having regand  to
what might be revealed, 1o many perts of the
workd, aud for that ecavon one had to consider
other nationy ns well 18 one’s own before
taking a step that might come to be considered
premature.

I should perhaps have mentioned this as a
central feature of the Gonzenko statement. e

[Mr. Mackenzie King |

these

- — i —— N e i w— e —— .. a

elarmesd that whal was batng created i Canada
was o ifth columin; that 0 was being created
through Rusdan seents in contact with  che
members of the publie ~crviee and others in
this country and that it had o st mded
far; that the mtilbration of thisfiort hoad gope
m overy wide directions amd for bt oo an
there was the necessity far 1h,
investigation, T ofelt it was my dnty, ead-
e~ of what imgzht come, tmmuedintely to iy wm
bhoth the Unie o Statez and the United Ioee-
dom of whot had been diselow ] hen and fo
let those twa countriva knaow of the gaven-
pent’s atennion to have the mattei -4,
gated.

NN

cotag et

My hon. friend, the loader of the appoa-ition,
n-ked me« o inform the hous 'u—mg!uf win Tk v,
when T visited the Unitedd States el the
United Kingdon, 1 ainformed the bt s
there of what [T have told ihe Lotgs this
cvening, b did. T felt oy firat duty was o
visiboonr ammedinte peiehbonr the Ut d
States, to se the Pr~ident qnd et bim know
that there wore coriain matteres bl vy alg!
to us here wlhach exars d e o fos " h o Coneda
might be being uwed av on bie for tin A e
aned the smparfing of mdoraat e bt s o f
concern Lo the Uded States and T e
anxions to have the P'ecsideont kpeew b v
ideenaled o b the fuily
ill\‘(.‘w‘.i,ll.'l'ﬂl.

Bifore T -av anvihing
()tu;'}rf fo) ll-f "hl‘ l)nlh;w l:n(r‘.,*. \\h;l_ L lh"
kmll of inf-)rm.;lh A bhod wae oy L o snn
at the tnne that 1 decrde b ta viog 4 Binre |
States and Great Britaon, wond beope poan o
that T shadl not be nnparting oy ipfonn oo
that maght bear oo what t w110,
[ thiuk, be mafe 11 I take the cia o0 nt st
appears in the first int ring boport of e oo
commimion and quote what i indicntod ther
] should hke to make it alew
during pretty much all of the maesth o :
tember that the invistigation seas & ang mocde
by the police, T was baing iwfoermsd of ah
was being brought to hght, and pretty aneh
the whole ease as it has sinee been doevelagud
hud at that time been worked out ot Loyt in
otthne by the Royal Canadinn  Mannted
Police. The matters of which 1 had knowl dge
i this indireet way are pretty mueh the same
a9 are set forth by the columisaon in the
documenta before us, I quote from the firt
interim report of the royal commision:

Ag shown by thesae documends, the wpecified

tasks commitied to Cnlonal Zabotin were ihe
following:

(1) As dencriled én toleprams from “The
Director”  at  Mogcow  addreamed to Colomel
Zabotin nnder his cover mame of “Grant,” in
Auguat, 1045,

Hivw

‘,‘.'hl;!c i ttey

(RINTIY S |

it her |
!

~, .
Sona
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(a) The dechnological processes and methode
employed by Canadiams and the English for the
production of explosives and cliemical materials.

ib) Tustruotions as to which of th: memhers
of the stafl of the military wttache should con-
tact particnlar Canadian agents and the supges-
vion of names of parwons in the Department of
N.ationdd Defence for Naval Atfairs who might
act s agents,

(¢) Information as to the transfer of the
Auwwerican troope from Europe to the United
Siates and the Pacific also the army head-
quarters of the 9th army, the 3nd, 5th, 7th, 13th
army corpa, the 18th armoure] division, the 2nd,
4¢h, Sth, 28th, 30th, 44th, 45th, 104th infantry
divigions and the 13th tank davision, together
with the dates of their moves, the lomition of the
ctaiv headquarters of the 8th and 16th ar-
4 - red corps, the 28th amd 8%th dnfantry divi-
o e, the 10th tank division and the location of
*he Brazilen infantry divieion. Whether or
v<° there bad been orgunized a staff tor the
Laerican troops in Germany and, if eo, 1ts loca-
t.n and the name of the offiver-in-command.

T+ hnation of the lat parachute ¢roope and
the plins for their future uee.

id* Irntructions to take measures 10 obtain
partautar: s to the materiole of which the
oms . beab s composed, its technelogical pro-
¢~ and draw npe,

2% Auw u arbiad 10 writiner under the hands
of Zabu i, Matinov and Rogov, during the
pem ol March se August, 19435,

i4- lo obtain from the national mTesearch
couredl modeir of Adereliped Tadar sets. photo-
graphe, techuuent Jduts. periodic Teports, char-
acleTizng the ¢rlar work carried on by the
soun=d and futies develepuients planned by the
couniy.

A} Paitiewlare of the explosives estublish-
ment st Valeartier and its work, inoluding the
cbbrining of formulas of explosives and samplee.

{g) A full Teport on the organization and
personnel «f the mationa] Tesearch council “Grive
mere detanls of organipation of research cuuneil.
Marizlate 90 as to get ko their leaders and find
out what they do.”

() Particular work of specified employces of
+te research counail.

te) The obtmining of documents from the lib-
rary of the oational research council so that
they might Le photographad, with the ex v]
iMention of ultimately obluininig the whole of
the bhrary of the natiomal research coumncil.

1) Panticulars as to the plamt at Chalk river,
Ontusis. and the processing of uranium.

(g) The obtaining of a sample of uranium
235, with detatls as to the plant where it is
produced.

(h) Specifications of the clectro-projector of
the “V™ bomb.

(i) Research work being carvied ot with rela-
tion to explogive materials and artillery.

(j) The obtaining of mmuterial on the Ameri-
can acroplane radar locator type, aavigation
periscope.

(k) A Uist of the army divisione of the Camna-
dian army which have returned {rom overseas
and the names, or numbers, of the dJdivisions
which have been divided, or reshaped, or under-
going trewhapinyg, .

(1) The number of troops in the Canxulian
army in the post-war period, together with the
systam of ite organization.

(m) Information from the Department of
Munitions and Supply of various kinds rclating

to gumw, shells, small arns, ammunition for amall
arms. sersenals, optical and radio appliquew,
automobiles aud tanks, apparatus for chemical
particulate of plants producing

warfare nmd

wime. )

(n) Information a8 to -« lectnonic sieils ysal
by the American navy.

iv) To vndeavour to keep agemnts in govern-
ment Jepartments threatemed with discharge as
a result of shrinkaze in size of the departmennts,
in order to maitun their usefulness ior the
future.

(p) Information with remard 0 depth bomlm
and double charye shella for canmon.

(q) Information .8 to telegrame passing ioto
and out of the Department of Externua! Affaire
and the office of the thigh commissioner for the
United Kingdom.

It must uot be assumed that the above liat ir
exhnustive, but it dustrates the mature of the
objectives of these operatious.

The commissioners then make the following
statement :

It has beam stated 4o us by cotnmission counxal
that the me-thod of presentation of the evidence
before us = with the object of ultimataly eatab-
Mahiag the identity of the greatst number of
thowe pereons who have acted 1s agente, but the
question of the relative importance of the above
subject matters has not beon deult witl, @ am
extent where we are vet able to promounce upon
it. To proceed in any other manner might have
Lwen prejudicial to the ultimate attainment of
the purposes of the iovestigation.

I read that now because of mother quistion
which the leader of the opposzition asked me
thi~ afternoon to answer, namely, how f{ar
this espionage systemn extended.

I should like my hon. {riend to notice thy!
commission counsel have attached particular
importance  to ultimately establishing the
wdentity of the grearest number of these por-
sons who have acted as agents. I shall icturn
to that a little later. as one of the reasons why
the commisgion have thought 1t desirable that
certain persons should be kept incommunicudo
pending their interrogation und the taking of
their evidence. It hus been with a view to
finding out in the most effective manner pos-
sible how far-reaching this particular infiltra-
tion has been.

1 coild not vervy well leave Canada until
the end of the debate on the address. It was
the first scesion of the new parliament; there
had been no division; T had to make perfectly
sure that the governmint wus going to remain
in office., =0 that I felt 1t advicable Lo wait
until after the first division. However, before
leaving 1 did eall into my ofhice the leader of
the opposition (Mr. Bracken), the leader of
the CCI. party (Mr. Coldwell) and the
Icader of the Social Credit party (Mr. Tow)
and told them individually one of the reasons
why I was lcaving at that time. The house
will remember thut Mr. Attlee had communi-
cated with me somewhat carlier, asking me to
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come over for purposes of consultation. I had
been obliged to reply that 1 could not leave
at least until the session was under way; but
this matter ~oming up in the first month of the
session made it important that I should not
deluy my departure longer,

There was one other rcason why I went at
that particular time. Part of the information

- secured by the police was to the effect that

a scientist who was quite high in his profession
andt very much trusted by the British govern-
ment; who was a c¢itizen of Britain but was
engaged in research work in Canada; who had
perhaps as much knowledge as anyone of
matters pertaining to the release of atomic
cnergy and reseaurches in that connection, was
about to leave Canada; that he had taken
passage on a plane and would be arriving at a
ccrtain time in London, where he would make
contact with the agent of a foreign power.
Information of this kind cannot be easily
trusted to telegraphic communication. I
thought 1 should give to the British govern-
ment as full information as I could with
regurd to what we had ascertained.

I left for Washington about the end of
September. I called upon the President at
the White House and had a short talk with
bim before leaving for New York to catch the
ship on which I was crossing to Britain, 1
arrived in London on a Sunday evening and
immediately, on Mr. Attlee's invitation, spent
the evening with him at Chequers, where I
told him of what had been discovered here.
Later 1 had talks with Mr. Bevin, the foreign
secretary, to whom 1 gave such information as
I thought the British government might wish
to huve. As hon. members know, I returned
later to Washipgton, in company with Mr.
Atulee, where a conference took place with the
President in respect of atomic energy, in con-
nection with which a report has already been
made. 1 then came back to Ottawa accom-
panied by Mr. Attlee and, after Mr. Attlee
returned to England, took up anew the ques-
tion into which I had been locking so anxiously
before 1 went away.

One question that undoubtedly presents
itself to the minds of hon. members 15 why
there should have been such a long deluy mn
disclosing this conditivn of afiairs. Why was
the commission not appointed at an earlier
date? Well, I think I have indicated eaough
to show that it would have been a very great
and grave mistake 10 take any premature step
in regard to the tune at which the investi-
gation should take place. The last thing this
country would have wished to be responsible
for was that in any way it had affected the
relations between any of the united nations
In a way that might prove prejudical to all.
[Mr. Mackenaie King.)

Hon. members will recall that there was a
meeting in London of the council of foreign
ministers at which the British, American and
USS.R. foreign ministers were present. That
particular meeting did not get very far. After
it was over, there were recriminations of one
kind and another. I think it would have
been most unfortunate had these disclosures
taken place while that meeting was being
held. There were other meetings to consider
that would be held in the near future. It
was a cquestion of what was the wisest step
to take, and the best time al which to take
it.

In order to be perfectly sure of an objective
view being taken of the whole situation,
the government decided to secure speciul
counscl and have him go over with the police
the whole record they had, and the documents
which were In their possession, and advise
the government as to the course which in his
opinion it would be best to follow. The first
question was what counsel to select. Hon.
members are now aware that . the government
chose Mr. E. K. Williaums of Winnipeg to be
counsel to advise the government in this
matter. Mr. Williams was made the choice
of the government because of his eminent
reputation in his profession and because at
the time he was president of the Canadiun
Bar Associativn, We were anxious that
whoever was chosen to advise the government
and later on, it proved, the commission would
be one in whomm members of the legal pro-
fession and the country would have every
confidence. We felt that Mr. Williams, being
president of the Canadian Bar Association,
and occupying such a prominent position in
the legal profession, would be the best person
upot whom to call.

A report was made by Mr, Williams, which
I hope some time later may be given to the
public. It cannot be given now because it
contains information that would have a bear-
ing on some of the trials about to take place.
In that report Mr. Williams recommended
that the best course to pursue would be to
appoint a royal commission and to ohtain as
commissioners the best persons it would be
possible to sccure. It was on that advice that
the government came to request the services
of Mr. Justice Taschereau and Mr. Justice
Kellock, two members of the Supreme Court
of Canada. Iere, again the government
realized that questions as to the liberty of
the subjec! and of individual freedom were
certain to arise in the exploration of the
extent and development of this system of
espionage, and that it would therefore be
most desirable and indeed, absolutely neces-
sary to have as commissioners persons who,
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above all, would be most anxious to protect
the liberty of the subject, and to see that
justice was donc—and justice only. )

1 have heard hon. members opposite speak
about the importance of upholding justice,
and of having justice followed in every step
in this matter. That is why, to the exclusion
of all others, two justices of the Supreme
Court of Canada were selected. The govern-
ment did not know where in Canada it
could find two personz who would be more
certain to uphold justice in every particular,
or who would be more zealous in protecting
the frecedom and liberty of the subject than
would two justices of the Supreme Court of
Canada. T hope this will be kept in mind
by hon. members if at any stage they are
inclined to criticize some of the methods
which neecessarily have been adopted to fulfil
the purpose of the iquiry.

I sail a moment ago that there had been
other conferences. Hon. members will recal
that in December there was a meeting in
Moscow at which the Secretary of State for the
UInited States, and Mr. Bevin, the Foreign
Minister of the United Kingdom, met with
Mr. Molotov in Moscow to discuss mutters
of mutual interest and concern. That would
not have been an appropriate moment at
which to have gone into this matter. IHad

of the Minster of Justice, and that the matter
might be dealt with in that way. That
tlustrates only one of several ways in which
we hoped the matter could have been deait
with s0 as to bhave as little effect as possible
on internationul relations.

A moment’s consideration, however, made
it clear that apything of that nature was wholly
impossible. In the first place it would not have
been possible to have made more than a very
limited inquirv. And in this situation, be-
cause of its vast proportions, 1t was all
important that if there was anything to it at
all we should go inté it thoroughly and see
that nothing was left undone which could
possibly be done to clean up a situastion of
this kind.

I now come to the question of the appre-
hension of the persons who have been detained.
This afternoon my hon. friend asked me to
explain when speaking this evening why the
order in council passed on October 6, giving
authority to the minister to have individuals
apprehended and detained, was not made
known to the House of Commons at the time
the Emergency Powers Transition Act was
passed, and a question was uasked as to
whether there still remained any secret orders
in council under the War Mearsures Act,

The explanation, in a word, is this: 1 have

spoken about a very trusted official who had ~
left Canada to go to England, who was to make "
contact there avith certain persons, who had, .
as we have reason to believe, very important ,
information in his possession, and who was

an investigation been started at that time
in Cauada, it might conceivably have been
gaid, or it might have been thought that it
had bcen planned with a view to making
difticultics in connection with that particular

meeting.

Then there came the united nations meect-
ing in London, the preparatory commission
of the united nations organization, the meet-
ing of the awsembly and of the sceurity council.
It wa< mnst important that these hodics
should he orgamzed with as httle as possible
in the way of mnstrust, suspicion or reerimina-
tion. Here. aguin, was another factor which
entered into the judgment of my colleague,
the Minister of Justice and miys=elf as to the
time a! which it would be most appropriate
to begin proceedings.

And here may I make a statement which
I think it is important to make. My hope
had been that it might be possible to have
an iquiry which would attract very little in
the way of public attention, at least until
matters were in such shape that only those
against whom evidence seecmed to be con-
clusive would be apprehended and com-
mitted for trial. [ thought that possibly we
might have members of the public service
whose names unfortunately have been brought
into this situation examined by deputies and
ministers of the departments, in the presence

in a position to give perhaps as much in the
way of information as almost any other with‘
regard to certain aspeots of research on atomic|
cnergy. and matters pertaining thereto. f

Contact was to be made in London on'
October 7. It was understood that if thid
person should make contact and thereupon be'
apprehended and brought before the police for.
examination, a similar step would have to be:
taken here with respect to the others in Can-:
ada who were believed to be in a similar,
position. Octoher 7 being the date upon which’
this man was to be apprehended in London,,
if caught in the act of making the con'tact,'
it was thought he mizht make, it was under-
stood that on the same date we should make
similar arrests here,

The War Measures Aot was then in force,
and the order in council was_passed in my
ahsence on the recommendation of the Acting
Prime Minister and the Minister of Justice.
I would have done exactly the saine, had I
been here, so as to give authority for the
apprehension of persons here the moment it
was thought desirable that such steps should
be taken,
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However, the contact in London did not
waterialize. Ope of the reasons it inay not
have was that it had been known in certain
quarters for a couple of wecks at that time that
a good dral of information was in the hands
of the government here, but it was still thought
probable that the expected contact might be
made. However, as it did not come at that
time, the matter here was also held in abey-
ance. No steps were taken at all under the
order until the time came when in was thought
necessary and advisable to take the course
recommended by counsel and approved by
this Government.

Up to that time use had not been made of
the order; it simply lay in abeyance until the
beginning of the time at which the commission
asked that certain individuals should be appre-
hended and brought before them for interro-
gation and to give evidence. I doubt very
much—the Minister of Justice will speak for
himself—whether the matter was in the mind
of the mmister as to that particular order
still being on the list when he was asked in
the house whether therc were abny other orders.
I confess that 1 never thought of it. I was
here, I think, when some one asked if there
were any other orders. The order had lain
dormant: it had not been used at that time.
I imagine that that would be the reason why
the minister made no mention of it. Even
were we to assume that he had konowledge of
it, I think it would have been most unwise
for the minister to Lave disclosed to parha-
ment and to the country at that time that
there was such an order, and that under it
persons would be apprehended for the purpose
of the inquiry that has since taken place. What
I would have dore and what I think the
minister would have done if it had catered
into his mind would have been to have told
my hon. friend aml the leaders of the other
parties in confidence that the order was there
and that 1t was being kept intact in case uwse
might have to be made of it a little later on.
That is the position as I see it.

Let me emphasize this fact. Before any
persons were apprehended at all, the commis-
gion had examincd carefully the man Gou-
zenko to whom 1 have referred and all the
documents that had been presented to the
police. The commission met in camera for a
week before any one was apprehended. The
two justices of the Supreme Court of Canada
were satisfied in their own minds bevond any
doubt that the documents that were before
them were authentic, and it was on the basis
of the documentary evidence they had that
caused them, when the commission counsel
expressed the view that these persons ought
to be apprehended and detained until they

[Mr. Mackensie King.]

gave their evidence, Lo recommend to the
minister that he iswsue the orders for apprehen-
sion.

May I ask hon. members this question? All
that 1 have described thus far and much more
wis known to the minister and mysclf at the
time the commission was appointed. While
the commission sat we were further informed
of what the commission themselves had found
with reference to the documents and to the
situation gencrally throughout the- country.
If, knowing all that, the Minister of Justice,
when the commission recommended that in
arder to get to the bottom of this thing i was
necessury to apprehend the different pcrsouns
whom they named, had refused to accept that,
had refused to dct and had said, “Well, we
will have a political question; the question of
the freedom -of the subject and the like will
come up and for political reasons wc had
better not take any steps,” I ask, what would
have been the responmbility the minister would
have bhad upon his head to-day before this

house?

It is an easv thing to criticize others for
taking particular steps before all the facts are
known. I believe that alrcady many criticisins
have been made which would not have been
made if the facts were fully known or even
pantly known as I have explained them
to-night.

1 gave out to the public, at the time the
commiassion asked that ecertain individuals
should be apprehended, a statement which I
think I ought to read at this moment because
it helps to make clear the caution with which
the government was proceeding from beginning
to close. This was issued by myself on
February 15:

Information of undoubted authemticity has
teached the Canadian government which estab-
kishes that there have been dieclosures of secrat
and confidentinl information to wunauthorized
persone, including eome members of the staff of
a foreign miseion in Ottawa. In order o mmke
puaaible the full investigetion which the serious
ness of thie information demands, the govern-
ment has appointed Mr. Justice Tascherean and
Mr. Justice Kellock of the Supreme Court of
Canada to act ae royal commiesionere to hear
evidence and to present a report which will be
made public. The commiesioners have appointed
as their counsel Mr. E, K. Williams, K.C,, of
Winnipeg, Mr. Gerald Fauteux, K.C., of Mont-
read, and Mr. D. W. Mundell of the Department
of Justice; the commission has already com-
menced ats investigatior, which is proceeding in
camera.

L¢t me emphasize that the commissiog had
been sitting n week at that time or longer.
They had muade prefectly certain that the
persons whom they were asking should be
apprchended were persons whom, upon the
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evidence before them, they felt justified in
askivg should Le¢ detained. My statement
continues:

Upon the application of counsel, and baving
regand to the serious mature of the evidence
alnady adduced before the commission, the
commiesioners Tecommended counsel to apply to
the Mimster of Juetice for orderw for the inter-
rogation and detention for that purpose of a
pnumber of persoms knmown or suspectedl to be
implicated. This action bhas been taken to-day.
The persons involved dnovlude some mnow em-
ployai or who have been employed in a number
of Jdepartments awml agencies of the government.

It ds the iunleation ui the government that,
after the report of the royul commissionere
lean meoeived, prosecuiion will be institubed an
= in which the evidence warrauts it, It
<.kl =ut be proper at this etage to make a
ni-- - oo rpoete statement or, in particular, to
n:t - pubiic the names of those concerned. Some
of t.om . ppear to have been far more deeply
ate]l Consmoionely  dnvalved than others.  Some
will 13- hably Le found te be more or lese inno-
ceat oin=tuiic ot farthering activities much

soooaetinti Chan ooy may have tmagined. Ob-
JURE
[N CER T S G

v hode nostter should be treated with
cidee sl s, pendiny Lhe time when at
w. o b pesstble te agEe o fuller statement.
7.8 the .aw--1e iion by the toyal commis
N e had bemn camplited the case Temains
REELTENNTI N

Vrooother we oo, thore agare the gosernment
wa- cukiung «-ory step poesablo, on the one
h . to make the fuilcsi pos<—hic pve-nga-
svn and, on the ther noand o proteet per-
sobe o ke liber o of soaeans to proteet the
names o persors art il the very last oo o
towhich —omo dise s wouia have o e
wih oo te whar badd becn done by
& of vieen ne tae Oticial Scerets Vet This
was 17 part te pews el these uersons
themlves, -cme of to-day ar:: on
tri). Untii the last m-snent - vorytlung was
donc v keop their nemes out of the press,

The -uihority granied o the covmission
wa to investigate pr-ony whe were or had
Lo = :he public wriee, wnd that is as
f.v 15 the commissicr ha. boen investigiting.
i 1oost ~onfess that I regnot. as every meinber
of th house regrets, very decply that th=
wnuk of the commi:ivn has takon »- long
a8 it has. When the commission was appointed
we hoped it might be a matter of only a
few duys that any of the persons would have
tc be detained, but pechaps I have told
the house enough for hon. members to realizn
how extensive this 1nquity necessarly s
In order that the inquiry might be us thorough
n3 possible the commissioners have gone
ubout the taking of evidence in a way that
would leave no stone unturned to ecstablish
the facts. We have indeed reason to be grate-
ful to the commissioners for the manner in
which they have given unremittingly of their
time and thought to their exacting duties.

3—2946—3
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Particularly are we indebted to them for the
manner in which they have sought to guard
against publicity being given to the names or
actions of any persons until this becume wholly
nperative.

Perhaps I should deal for 1 moment, Lirfore
concluding, with some of tle international
aspects of this matter. The house will have
noticed, as the publie have, that 1o the state-
ment [ gave out I wmade no mention o any
country by name. Bt hefore giving out this
statcrnent 1 Jid ask the charge d'affaires of
the Russian embaszy to come to my ofhier:
I read to him the statement. and 1 told hin
that the - country te which reicrence  w.a-
made was the USSR, Hon, members el
have .notized that 1t was the Soviet gov.rn-
ment it=elf which was the first to state that
Russia was the country that was reforred 1o
in that statement. - There lLas been no com-
munication from the government of  th
USSR, to our government’ other th. a
statemeut which was huanded to oar repre-
sentative 1o the USSR at Moscon aud to
which much  pubhery  was given an 4o
Russian press. That was the ~tatement aiai.
made light of nany asveets of the statamens
I had given out, but whick did have this
vignificant parmgvaph anoa, chae the Ry
government admiitted that the palitov o twhe
had taken a eourse of wtion bere whel was
1 think the ternn vwd was, “wadiussible”,
and that lLe had been recalled  May 1 v
that 10 the course oi this inquiry three or
four other jpersons have <mee ceturned to
Russia from the Russin embasy; this ac
the instanee of the RRussian gosvermment i-elf.

This brings up. of course, very  large
question, that of the relutions between Lussin
and Canadn.  Some person~ may fecl that we
ought to sever relatious, a3 they would -ay,
by having the Russian cmibnssy  withdraw
from Canada. 1 hope that no view of that
kind will be expressed by apvone in o«
responsible  position. We in Canada wunt
only the best of relutions with the USSR,
s wc do with every other country, and we
must not bhe too reudy to judge until we
know all tlie ecircumstances conpected with
the particular situation. I believe it i3 true
that therc are agencics working, may I put it,
at the side of the Hussian embassy which are
doing things that possibly are unknown to
the ambassador himself and members of his
stad. That may be so and it may not be
80. At any ratc 1 nm not going to be the
one to judge ns to who has knowledge of
this and who has knowiedge of that. The
time will come when all this can be worked
out and, I hope and pray, will be worked
out in a manner which will let us get nd of
whatever there muy be of wrong and evil
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in the whole business and establish the friend-
liest of relations on a true and sound basis,
which will be above suspicion in every way.

It has T think been said that perhaps 1
should Fave smothered up this business alto-
gother, that 1t wax bound to have serious
mpheations and  that it might huve very
serious conseqiiences May 1 say, Mr. Speaker,
I have done what 1 thought was nght, aned
I have yvet to find that tuking the coursc
which i3 right 15 doing other than followiug
the course which will prove the best in the
end. 1 cannot imagine anyone in a responsible
po-ition wishing to smother up a condition
of this kind.  That would only help to
spread  fhe evil through  the  country, and
eviend it through time, until, perhaps, conse-
qnenees veny o septons indeed would arise. The
bhost wov o owhieh most social ills can b
cured s not by penalty but by publieity
The hzhe of dov will eure much in the wav
of evil that nothing else 1 able to cure
That 1=« helief winelh T have hoeld all mv
hie i regard to all questiong that have to
do wich cocml evils of different kinds. 1 am
aure bt asonoreenlt of the present inquiry
cuee 10 whole situaiion has becen  clenved
up. we <hall ail be able to breathe more
fi- “Iv. with greater confidence in each other,
and 0 other conntries,

[ 'ivnk in thus statement issued by the
Yasann governtient 1 wus said that 1 ought
first Lo heve et therr government know about
the<e fucte Wl T 2did think at one time of
goanr o Russie myselt and of spraking with
Crorcialicanmo Stadin o reforence to 1t. What
I weov, or bave leaned of Mr. Stalin from
those wh have beon elosddy associated with
him i the wiae, ennacd me to believe that he
woukd not veuntenance action of this kind on
the ,mrt of oflicials of his country. I believe
that when these facts are known to him and
1o oth:rs in positions of full responsibility, we
shull find that a change will come that will
make u vast difierence indeed.

However. 1 did ask myself the question,
were I to attempt to convey to the Russian
government what I knew, without documents
which I could myself explain and prove, might
not be met with the statement that after all as
at was Canuadian government officials who were

«<oncerned, we had better clean our own house
first? If the time should come when it could
‘be of any service in helping to meet this situa-
:tion, I am prepared to tuke any step at all
that may be deemed advisable with a view to
having this cleared up in a manner which will
not only maintain but strengthen friendly rela-
tions with that great power.

May I add this word. The Russian state-
ment mentions that Canada's action had been

{(Mr. Mackensie King.)

iabel beeanse of some feeling that Mr. Bevin,
the Britizh foreign minister, had as a conse-
quence of descussions which took place at the
«<anity counctl. Lot me answer that hy
d~owing the attention of hon, membirs to the
inet “hat tho-sceurity council met months after
the time at wheh this information came into
the possesaon of the gnvernment. The sccurity
conndi: mes tnes wers somelhing else  alto-
ecither,  Cuar actiop here had ns pos<ibl: eon-
neson with event: an the secunty <ouneil.

On¢ o her thing whick 1= veing sad is ihay
the action of the dotained persons wes ey o
the see cey with recpect 1o the atemic hamb
I had a btter only vosiorder (rans the s ores
tuty of one of the eonneils of <pviet Cuncidiap
fricad-top, stating that il i had grown o,
of the fact that Russty woo being demind
wformaien which tht United Staees, Britan
and Cinada had with respees o the acome
bomb.  May 1 saprezs thiz f-et upen ih-
houge, that the disclosures of wkhich 1 hav-
been spcnking L’:&-Di;{"" o Bock ta 1947 and
194, The organizat.en for the purpasc of
espionage of which 1 have been spenimg has
been 1n ovistznee for three or iour veors in Chis
country, apd the greater part of the nfarma-
tion whishi 1t obtnined was sceued before
anyons knews anything cbout ihe atom: bomb
outside of those in the immediate kuow. Toe
attacks on Hireshima snd Nagasaki were, off 7
recollect aright, on the 6tk of Augist und at &
later date 10 thit momd, the 9th of Augusi,
1 think. Documents in the posscssicn of the
government are 1n large part prior to that
time altogether. This espionage business has
Lot arisen out of the atomic bemb in any
way or any secrecy 1o connection with it. Now
that the atomic bomb is a known factor, un-
doubtedly informaticn is being sought 1 taat
conncetion, but the espiopage nei which hea
been referred to to-night has Leen in existence
for a much lopger time that the past seven
months, It was the 8th of September when
the documents came into the possession of the
government.

I do not think it is necessary for me to say
anything about the statements which have been
made in rcierence to myself as bewng anti-
labour and anti-Soviet. My feeling towards the
great muss of the people in this and other
lands and what should be donme to improve
their position is well known in this country.
In regard to Soviet friendship I recall that a
year or two after first coming into office
twenty-five years ago or so, the government
of which I was then the head was one which
promoted an “Aid for Russia” fund, to help
the sturving children of that country. 1 did
what I could to help further that great move-
ment at that time. I have done what I could
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to further the Soviet-Cunadian friendship
movement. [ have spoken on the platform in
Toronto in support of it. and on the platform
in Montreal in support. of it. The government
of which I am a member has given aid to

Russia in munitions and in food and assistunce’

in other ways. It is the sarne government
that has invited the Russians to come and
open a legation here, the ssme governtent
that has sent an ambassador to Russia, All
through, from the beginning {o this hour, my
attitude and the attitude of those who sit
around me and with me on this side has been
one of Nuthering to the utmost the friendli-
est und best of relations with all countries
and may [ suy that none of us will ever forget
th herowsm of the Russian people. None of
u~ will ever forget their sacrifices and what
we all owe to them. alopg with those of other
countie. s 1 saving the freedom of the world.
W uve not going to let these vears of sacrifices
and the <acrifiee of millions of lives go by in
or joer th+t alli« pations mayv Lecome separated
v 1ter than drawn together iute one great
familv

I wili to conclude Ly sayving that I hope
that members in the course of the further
nui to attempt to judge any country or any
cne individual until we know all the facts as
ity ax we can possibly know them.

As far as the Russian people ure concerned I
atir as sure a3 I am of anything that the
Russian people are just as anxious for friendly
reiations with Canada and with peoples in
other parts of the world as our own people ure,
but iu that country us in some others, there
are persons who for their own selfish ends
will do many thinegs that would not be count-
cnunced by the great majority. We have scen
how a feww inen may get power into their
own hands, .ind, power onee sccured, they will
do with it for selfish and ambitious ends many
things that ar¢ not approved by their fellow-
men. What has happened in this instance
mav e been the action of a few men which
| am ecertain will not be condoned and would
not be countrnanced by the Russian people.
I intend with whatever little power I have,
so far a= this matter is concerned, to unearth
whataver muv  be wrong, and for the
remainder of my life to devole my time to
trving in every way possible to see that the
greatest amount of friendship and harmony and
good will is promoted between all peoples
and between the Russian people and the people
of Canada in particular.

MM LD W R L TRo5: 10Wh-Big-
gar): Mr. Speaker, to-night 1 find myseli 1n
a somewhat difficult position. We have heard
a story which I think has impressed itself

upon the house and will undoubted!y impress
itself further, and it 18 very difficult now to
enter into a discussion of the speech from the
thrope or even of the remarks of the right
hon.\ the Prime Minister (Mr. Mackenzie
King). [ realize, however, that we are late in
meeting this scssion, and that there 13 a
desire og the part of thie house to procced
with its “business. Therefore [ shall refrain
from doing what I might otherwisce have done,
adk the hause to allow me to call it eleven
o'clock, and proceed to sy what [ have to
say to-night,

First 1 should hke to make some comments
ou the spcech which has just been made by
the Prime Minwster. 1 think that in view of
the very uneasy international situation we
should follow his advice and be careful in the
phraseology we use in discussing what has
heen placed before us to-night. If [ may suy
so, the first thing I would remark is thuat in
reality we are discussing cvents which have
led up to charges against Canadians and
British natiopals n this country in peace
time. Espionage 1= the word that 13 used
in this connection, and I think wrongly used,
because espionage cab, i my opiioh, pro-
perly and best be defined as the sending of
persons into an cuciny's country in order to
walch what the enemy is doing. But herc we
are dealing with persons of our own nation-
ality who, it is alleged, have violited their
trust, and who, if found guiliy, will invite
punishment under our Otheigl Secerets Act.
I think this should be kept in mind 1in disens-
sing thtv matter, and that is why I try to
make that pomt quite clear.

I say, too, that if the acceused are found
guilty after a fair and proper trial, they must
be dealt with according to the luw as laid
down by this parliament. [t is no excuse. as
some cvnics 1n this country are suggesting, to
say that all mations employ forcign agents.
We ure not tryving » foreign power; we are
charging our own palionals with an offence
aguinst their fellow citizens wlach, f proven,
no right-thinking person can possibly con-
done. That T think should be made abund-
antly clear, because some sections of the
press in ouwr country and in the United
States have publicized this matier in a way
which I believe has tended to complicale a
very difficult international situation.

The Primme Minister's statement of Febru-
ary 15, which he read to the house to-might,
was couched in careful and 1 think unpro-
vocative lunguuge, and I regret that some
sections of the press did nbdbt exhibit that
sense of responsibility in discussing the mut-
ter which characterized our Canadian news-
pupers during the war. Such newspapers may
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have overlooked the fact that a violent press
campaign directed against ‘Russin would be
regarded in a country where there is no
free press, ns the official attitude of this coun-
trv. Considerable mischief has arisen because
of that. It has lent colour, too, to the charge
in the communist Labour Progressive papers
in this country, widely quoted in the Soviet
union, that Canada and its government arc
engaged in a plot against what they are
pleased to call the left wing of the labour
movement or In an anti-Soviet campaign,
when I am confident that nothing is farther
from the truth. Actually the fact 1s that
everyone with any sense of responsibility
realizes that the peace and welfare of the
whole world depend upon what? Upon the
establishment of friendly relations and con-
fidence among all natione, and particularly
between Russia and  the  English-speaking
wuorld.  Failling to achieve this, lacking this
hope, the united nations organization will be
shattered. Upon our understandings and good
relations the future of mankind depends.

In thiy atomic ape the umied nations
organization must be male to work <o that
we  may oroceed to  the ostablishment of
government at the international level. 1 believe
there 18 oo ather way of preventing a terrible
catastrophe. a third worki war, in which, with
the new wespoms amd scientific knpowledge we
now possess, millions of penple may be wiped
out in 8 single night. And when I make that
statement I do pot make it as my own. Had
I been present in December when the matter
of the atomic bomb wuis discussed—unfor-
tunately I was ill—I would huve told the house
that early in December I heard some of the
leading scientists who were responsible for the
discovery of atomic energy aunl the making of
the atomic bomb make that very statement;
that with the knowluige they now possess it ie
possible in a country like the Uniued States,
by planting atomic bormbe in the industrial
centres, to destroy as many as forty milhon
souls in a single night.

Now I want to say something about the
method pursued by the government in the
handling of uds =mtuation. 1 appreciate the
difhiculties; [ appreciate the defence of the
government's  procedure which the Prime
Minister has offered this evening, but. I belicve
there has bcen too much secrecy, too much
mystery in the government's handhng of the
mnatter for the public gond. The air has been
full of rumours, some wild but mavy which
subsequently proved well founded. This has
been baid and, may I say to the government,
indacates serious leaks from persons who might
be expected to show a greater sense of respon-
sibility. A case in point is that of the arrest

[Mr. Coldwell.)

of the representative of a coustituency in this
house. A week before the action was taken a
daspatch to a lLondon newspaper quoted in a
Montreal newspaper, 1 believe the Monireal
Hcrald, aaid that such action was about to be
taken, that the Priitne Minister would denounce
a member of parliament in the house when
we met. Well, the hon. member for Carticr
(Mr. Rose) was arrested the day we met, and
the next day the Priine Minister informed the
house that the unknown agent who had
received information from an accused for the
benefit of Russia was believed to be the repre-
sentative in parlament of the constituency of
Cartier, Montreal. There have been other
stmilar news i1tems.

Mr. MACKENZIE KING: Mav I say to my
hon. friend that I saw the itrm to which he
refers, and if my recollection is aright it
stated that I was going to complain ubaut
somcthing baving been revealed in regard to
some secret session of parliament.  Nothiny
of the kind that I know .of has c¢ntered inty
the present situution. More than that uay
I way that 1 had no knowledge thu: the
report would come that was received from he
comintz<ioners on Thursday, b was that -
port. which necessitated the nrrest of tlas hun
member. There have been louke, T admil, but
thut wus not one of them.

Mr. COLDWELL: Well, 1 «m very slud
to get the Prime Mimster’s asvurzr:ee; but
he states there have been leks, nd indred
it was at least quitc a coincidones thar a
week before the action took place a dispntch
contuining sich a story should go from {ittuwa
to the London Daily Mirror, 1 think it was

In view of what the Prime Minister said
this evening I wish to say (hat through the
ages our forefathers have fought vigorously
to prevent seeret tnauls and actions affecting
the liberty of the subject without fuir and
proper trial. During the wuar hon. cmbers
who were here will recollect there wus con-
siderable debate in this house. The defence
of Cunada regulations were moditied, but
many hon. members were disturbed by the
manner in which those regulations and the
War Meusures Act were used not only aguinst
those whou endeavoured to assist the encmy
but ngainst members of religious sects and,
mdeed, Canadians of Japunese origin., Quis-
lings and traitors must be punished, but we
dare not allow any government to act except
in accordance with the established principles
of justice.

The persons now held are believed to have
violated the Official Secrets Act and betrayed
their trust. I repeat that if they are guilty,
they must be punished. But 1 have carefully
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1. PRIME MINISTER'S STATEMENT OF FEBRUARY 15, 1946

The Prime Minister, Mr. Mackenzie King, made the following statement
this afternoon:

Information of undoubted authenticity has reached the Canadian Govern-
ment which establishes that there have been disclosures of secret and confidential
information to unauthorized persons, including some members of the staff of a
foreign mission in Ottawa. In order to make possible the full investigation
which the seriousness of this information demands, the Government has appointed
Mr. Justice Taschereau and Mr. Justice Kellock of the Supreme Court of
Canada to act as Royal Commissioners to hear evidence and to present a report
which will be made public. The Commissioners have appointed as their Counsel
Mr. E. K. Williams, K.C., of Winnipeg, Mr. Gerald Fauteux, K.C., of Montreal,
and Mr. D. W, Mundell of the Department of Justice; the Commission has
already commenced its investigation, which is proceeding in camera.

Upon the application of Counsel, and having regard to the serious nature of
the evidence already adduced before the Commission, the Commissioners recom-
mended Counsel to apply to the Minister of Justice for orders for the interrogation
and detention for that purpose of a number of persons known or suspected to be
implicated. This action has been taken to-day. The persons involved include
some now employed or who have been employed in a number of Departments
and agencies of the Government.

It is the intention of the Government that, after the report of the Royal
Commissioners has been received, prosecution will be instituted in cases in
which the evidence warrants it. It would not be proper at this stage to make a
more complete statement or, in particular, to make public the names of those
concerned. Some of them appear to have been far more deeply and consciousty
involved than others. Some will probably be found to be more or less innocent
instruments in furthering activities much more serious than they may have
imagined. Obviously, the whole matter should be treated with caution and
reserve, pending the time when it will be possible to issue a fuller statement.
Until the investigation by the Royal Commissioners has been completed the
case remains sub judice.
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2. TEXT OF ORDER IN COUNCIL, P.C. 411 OF FEBRUARY 35,
1946, ESTABLISHING THE ROYAL COMMISSION

PC. 411

Certified to be a true copy of a Minute of a Meeting of the Committee of the
Privy Council, approved by His Excellency the Governor General on the
5th February, 1946.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them a report dated
5th February, 1946, from the Right Honourable W. L. Mackenzie King, the
Prime Minister, representing:—

That it has been ascertained that secret and confidential information has
been communicated directly or indirectly by public officials and other persons
in positions of trust to the agents of a Foreign Power to the prejudice of the
safety and interests of Canada;

That by Order in Council P.C. 6444 dated the 6th day of October, 1945,
the Acting Prime Minister and the Minister of Justice were authorized to
make an Order that any such person be interrogated and/or detained in such
place and under such conditions as the Minister might from time to time deter-
mine if the Minister were satisfied that it was necessary so to do;

That it now seems expedient in the public interest that a full and com-

plete inquiry be made into all the facts relating to and the circumstances sur-
rounding the communication by such public officials and other persons in
positions of trust of such secret and confidential information to the agents
of a Foreign Power.

The Committee, therefore, on the recommendation of the Prime Minister,
advise that the Honourable Robert Taschereau, a Judge of the Supreme Court
of Canada, and the Honourable R. L. Kellock, a Judge of the Supreme Court
of Canada, be appointed Commissioners under Part I of the Inquiries Act,
Chapter 99, Revised Statutes of Canada, 1927, and any -other law thereto
enabling, to inquire into and report upon which public officials and other persons
in positions of trust or otherwise have communicated, directly or indirectly,
secret and confidential information, the disclosure of which might be inimical
to the safety and interests of Canada, to the agents of a Foreign Power and
the facts relating to and the circumstances surrounding such communication.

The Committee further advise,—

1. That for all such purposes and all purposes properly incidental thereto
the said Commissioners shall without limiting the powers conferred upon them
by the said Part I of the said the Inquiries Act, have and possess the power
of summoning and that they be empowered to summon before them any person
or witness and of requiring them to give evidence on oath or affirmation,
orally or in writing, and of requiring them to produce such documents and
things as the Commissioners deem requisite to the full investigation of matters
into which they are appointed to examine;

B
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2. That the said Commissioners be directed that a record shall be made
of all the evidence which shall be given or produced before them as to the
matters of the said inquiry and that the oral evidence of witnesses before the
said Commissioners shall be taken in shorthand by a shorthand writer, approved
and sworn by the said Commissioners or one of them and shall be taken down
question and answer and it shall not be necessary for the evidence or deposition
of any witness to be read over to or signed by the person examined and said
evidence shall be certified by the person or persons taking the same as correct;

3. That the said Commissioners may adopt such procedure and method
as they may deem expedient for the conduct of such inquiry and may alter
or change the same from time to time;

4. That the saild Commissioners be empowered in their discretion from
time to time to make interim reports to the Governor in Counci! on any matter
which in their judgment is the proper subject of such & report together with
the evidence then before them and their findings thereon;

5. That the said Commissioners be authorized to engage the services of
such counsel and of such technical officers, and experts, and other experienced
clerks, reporters and assistants as they may deem necessary and advisable; and

6. That all the privileges, immunities and powers given by Order in Council,
P.C. 1639, passed on the 2nd March, 1942, shall apply.

(Sgd.) A. D. P. HEENEY,
Clerk of the Privy Council.




3. LETTER OF COMMISSION COUNSEL TO THE MINISTER
OF JUSTICE, FEBRUARY 23, 1946

Orrawa, 23rd February, 1946.

The Right Honourable L. S. St. Lauvrent, K.C,,
Minister of Justice,
Ottawa.

DEar SiIr,—1. Since the Commissioners on our advice recommended that
vou should be requested to issue orders for the interrogation, and for that
purpose detention, of certain persons a considerable amount of additional
evidence oral and documentary has been placed before the Commissioners which
confirms the serious nature of the disclosures on which the orders for interroga-
tion were based.

2. Orders have been made to date under Order in Council P.C. 6444, dated
the 6th day of October, 1945, and passed under the provisions of the War
Measures Act and continued under the provisions of the National Emergency
Transitional Powers Act, 1945, for the interrogation of eleven men and two
women and it is apparent that it may be necessary to request that additional
persons may be interrogated under similar orders.

3. A great deal of evidence is still to be placed before the Commissioners
and the reasons for proceeding in camera become morc apparent every day.

4. The Inquiry is proceeding as rapidly as possible especially considering
the difficult circumstances under which the work is being done (it obviously must
be done with the greatest discretion) and the Commissioners desire to make a
report which will contain at least some of their findings within as short a time as
possible which, however, as appears at present cannot be less than two or three
weeks from now.

5. The Commissioners feel, however, and have authorized us to advise you
that in their opinion the evidence has not advanced to the stage where an Interim
Report should now be made. They do think, however, that it should be possible
to report upon the completion of the evidence now in contemplation as above
as soon thereafter as that is physically possible leaving such further matters
as may later have to be dealt with for subsequent report. This is as the matters
appear to the Commissioners at the moment. It may be that as the result
of the evidence not yet heard the above proposed procedure might prove to
be inappropriate.

6. The Commissioners have authorized us to state further that notwith-
standing their order that their proceedings be conducted in camera, the informa-
tion communicated to you in this letter may be made public at once if you see
fit to do so. '

(Sgd.) E. K. WILLIAMS,
(Sgd.) GERALD FAUTEUX,

(Sgd.) D. W. MUNDELL,
Counsel to the Royal Commission.
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4, TEXT OF ORDER IN COUNCIL P.C. 6444 OF OCTOBER 6, 1945

P.C. 6444

PRIVY COUNCIL
CANADA

AT THE GOVERNMENT HOUSE AT OTTAWA

SATURDAY, the 6th day of OcroBEr, 1945.

PRESENT

His EXCELLENCY
Tue GoverNor GENERAL IN CouUNCIL:

WHEREAS it has been ascertained that agents of a Foreign Power have been
engaged in a concerted effort to obtain from public officials and other persons
in positions of trust secret and confidential information the disclosure of which
might be inimical to the safety and interests of Canada and friendly Powers
and that secret and confidential information has been communicated, directly
or indirectly, by certain persons to the agents of the aforesaid Foreign Power
fI,)o the prejudice of the public safety or interests of Canada and of friendly

owers ; .

AND WHEREAS it is deomed necessary for the security, defence, peace, order
and welfare of Canada that the Acting Prime Minister or the Minister of
Justice should be authorized to order the detention of such persons in such places
and under such conditions as the Acting Prime Minister or the Minister of

-Justice may from time to time defermine;

Trererore His Excellency the Governor General in Council, on the recom-
mendation of the Honourable J. L. Ilsley, Acting Prime Minister, and pursuant
to the powers conferred by The War Measures Act, being Chapter 206 of the
?ti’lvised Statutes of Canada, 1927, is pleased to order and doth hereby order as

ollows:

1. The Acting Prime Minister or the Minister of Justice, if satisfied that
with a view to preventing any particular person from communicating
secret and confidential information to an agent of a Foreign Power
or otherwise acting in any manner prejudicial to the public safety or the
safety of the state it is necessary so to do, may make an Order that
any such person be interrogated and/or detained in such place and
under such conditions as he may from time to time determine.

2. Any person shall, while detained by virtue of an order made under this
Order, be deemed to be in legal custody.

3. The Minister of Justice if satisfied that the detention of any person so
detained is no longer necessary for the public safety or the safety of
the State may make an order releasing him.

9
58202—33




The National Archives' reference KV 2/1422

i0

4. The Acting Prime Minister or the Minister of Justice may authorize
any member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police to enter any

i ' od b hose detention is ordered at |
premises ocoupied or used by 8 person whose detention is ordered a 5. FIRST INTERIM REPORT OF THE ROYAL COMMISSION

any time or times and to search the premises and every person found
thereon and to seize any article found on the premises or any such person TO THE GOVERNOR GENERAL IN COUNCIL,

which the said member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police has MARCH 2, 1946
reasonable grounds for believing to be evidence that secret and confi-
dential information has been communicated to agents of a Foreign Ortawa. Ontario

¥ H

Power.
2nd March, 1946.
(Sgd.) A. M. HILL,
Asst. Clerk of the Privy Council. Your EXCELLENCY:—

Pursuant to Order in Council P.C. 411, dated the 5th day of February,
1946, we have been conducting the investigation thereby provided for, having
commenced our sittings on Wednesday, the 13th day of February, 1946. We
have now reached a stage in the hearing of evidence which permits us and
renders it advisable for us to make an Interim Report.

The evidence establishes that a network of under-cover agents has been
organized and developed for the purpose of obtaining secret and confidential
information particularly from employees of departments and agencies of the
Dominion Government and from an employee of the office of the High Com-
missioner for the United Kingdom in Canada. The evidence reveals that
these operations were carried on by certain members of the staff of the Soviet
Embassy at Ottawa under direect instructions from Moscow. The person
directly in charge of these operations was Colonel Zabotin, Military Attaché
of the Embassy, who had as his active assistants in this work Lieutenant-
Colonel Motinov, Chief Assistant Military Attaché, Lieutenant-Colonel Rogov,
Assistant Military Attaché Air, Major Sokolov, of the staff of the Com-
mercial Counsellor of the Embassy, Lieutenant Angelov, one of the Secretaries
of the Military Attaché as well as other members of the staff of the Military
Attaché, all of whom, as well as the agents whom they employed in the
pursuance of their activities, were, in the interests of secrecy, known by
under-cover names. We have noticed that each of the dossiers compiled by
the staff of the Military Attaché with respect to the Canadian agents con-
tains this significant question: “Length of time in net.” We think that the
word “net” well deseribes the organization set up and under development
by Colonel Zabotin and his predecessor.

We have had before us a former employee of the Russian Embassy at
Ottawa, Igor Gouzenko, the cipher clerk of the Military Attaché, who has
described this organization and its functioning, and who has produced original
documents, the authenticity of which we accept.

As shown by these documents, the specified tasks committed to Colonel
Zabotin were the following:—

{1) As deseribed in telegrams from “The Director” at Moscow addressed
to Colonel Zabotin under his cover name of “Grant”, in August, 1945.

{(a) The technological processes and methods employed by Canadians
and the English for the production of explosives and chemical
materials,

(b) Instructions as to which of the Members of the Staff of the Military
Attaché should contaet particular Canadian agents and the suggestion
of names of persons in the Department of National Defence for
Naval Affairs who might act as agents.

11
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(¢) Information as to the transfer of the American troops from Europe to
the United States and the Pacific also the Army Headquarters of the
9th Army, the 3rd, 5th, 7th, 13th Army Corps, the 18th Armoured
Division, the 2nd, 4th, 8th, 28th, 30th, 44th, 45th, 104th Infantry
Divisions and the 13th Tank Division, together with the dates of their
moves, the location of the Anny Headquarters of the 8th and 16th
Armoured Corps, the 29th and 89th Infantry Divisions, the 10th Tank
Division and the location of the Brazilian Infantry Division. Whether
or not there had been organized a staff for the American Troops in
Germany and, if so, its location and the name of the Officer-in-
Command.

The location of the 1st Parachute Troops and the plans for their
future use. .

(d) Instructions to take measures to obtain particulars as to the materials
of which the atomic bomb is composed, its technological process and
drawings.

(2) As described in writings under the hands of Zabotin, Motinov and Rogov,

during the period March to August, 1945.

(a) To obtain from the National Research Council models of developed
radar scts, photographs, technical data, perindic reports characterizing
the radar work carried on by the Council and future developments
planned by the Council.

(b) Particulars of the explosives establishment at Valcartier and its work,
including the obtaining of formulas of explosives and samples.

(c) A full report on the organization and personnel of the National Research
Council “Give more details of organization of Research Council
Manipulate so as to get to their leaders and find out what they do.”

(d) Particular work of specified employecs of the Research Council.

(e) The obtaining of docunients from the library of the National Research
Council so that they ight be photographed, with the expressed inten-
tion of ultimately obtaining the whole of the library of the National
Research Council.

(f) Particulars as to the plant at Chalk River, Ontario, and the processing
of uranium,

(g} The obtaining of a sample of uranium 235, with details as to the plant
where it is produced.

(h) Specifications of the electro-projector of the “V” bomb.

(1) Research work being carried on with relation to explosive materials
and artillery.

(j) The obhtaining of material on the American aeroplane radar locator
type, navigation periscope.

(k) A list of the Army Divisions of the Canadian Army which have returned
from overseas and the names, or numbers, of the Divisions which have
been divided, or re-shaped, or undergoing re-shaping.

(1) The number of troops in the Canadian Army in the post-war period,.
together with the system of its organization.

(m) Information from the Department of Munitions and Supply of various
kinds relating to guns, shells, small arms, ammunition for small arms,
arsenals, optical and radio appliances, automobiles and tanks,
apparatus for chemical warfare and particulars of plants producing
same.

(n) Information as to electronic shells used by the American Navy.
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(o) To endeavour to keep agents in Govermment Departments threatened
with discharge as a result of shrinkage in size of the Departments, in
order to maintain their usefulness for the future.

(p) Information with regard to depth bombs and double charge shells for
cannon.

(q) Information as to telegrams passing into and out of the Department
of External Affairs and the office of the High Commissioner for the
United Kingdom, :

It must not be assumed that the above list is exhaustive, but it illustrates
the nature of the objectives of these operations.

It has been stated to us by Commission Counsel that the method of
presentation of the evidence before us is with the object of ultimately establish-
ing the identity of the grecatest number of those persons who have acted as
agents, but the question of the relative importance of the above subject matters
has not been dealt with to an extent{ where we are yet able to pronounce upon it.
To proceed in any other manner might have been prejudicial to the ultimate
attainment of the purposes of the investigation.

It has taken considerable time to hear the evidence relating to the general
scheme of the operations being carried on, which evidence it was necessary to
hear before dealing with the activities of particular agents. The evidence heard
so far, however, establishes that four persons, namely,

Mrs. Emma Woikin

Captain Gordon Lunan
Edward Wilfred Mazerall
Miss Kathleen Mary Willsher

all employees of the Dominion Government, except Kathleen Mary Willsher,
who is an employee of the Government of the United Kingdom, have communi-
cated directly or indirectly seeret and confidential information to represent-
atives of the U.S.S.R. in violation of the provisions of the Official Secrets Act,
1939, 3 Geo. VI, Cap. 49.

Emma Woikin

This person was employed as a cipher clerk in the Department of External
Affairs, having taken the usual oath of secrecy required in such cases. Taking
advantage of the position she occupied, she communicated to Major Sokolov
the contents of secret telegrams to which she had access in the course of her
duties.

Captain Gordon Lunan

This man, & Captain in the Canadian Army, on loan to the Wartime
Information Board, now the Canadian Information Service, was the head of a
group of agents acting under the personal direction of Lieutenant-Colonel Rogov.
In the course of his own particular duties with the Information Board, no secret
inforination came to him, but he was the intermediary through whom the infor-
mation furnished by the group reached Rogov, which information was, in our*
opinion, furnished and transmitted in violation of the statutory provisions already
referred to. The members of the group headed by Lunan were scientists em-
ployed by the National Research Council and the Department of National
Defence, Research Division, and their concern under Lunan, was to obtain for
Rogov information on technical matters in connection with the work of those
agencies. Some of the information obtained and transmitted to Rogov related
to the latest developments in radar. Through this group also secret documents
in the library of the National Research Council were handed over.
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Edward Wilfred Mazerall.

He is an electrical engineer in the National Research Council working in
the field of radar, who also had taken an oath of secrecy. He was one of the
group headed by Lunan and he furnished to the latter on one occasion, for
transmission by the latter, two reports of the National Research Council on
certain developments, actual and projected, in the field of radar, at a time when
the disclosure of these documents was still unauthorized. The fact that these
reports were shortly thereafter presented to the Third Commonwealth and Empire
Conference on Radio for Civil Aviation should be considered as an extenuating
circumstance in Mazerall’s favour.

Kathleen Mary Willsher.

She was employed in the office of the High Commissioner for the United
Kingdom as Deputy Registrar, having subscribed to a document in which she
acknowledged having read the Official Secrets Act of the United Kingdom. She
had access to practically all secret documents in that office and made disclosure
of the contents of some secret documents from that office.

In our final report we shall deal more fully with the evidence and our
findings with regard to the above named persons. Each of these persons has
given evidence before us and has admitted the substance of the above. To each,
in accordance with the provisions of Sections 12 and 13 of The Inquiries Act,
R.S.C., cap. 99, an opportunity was given to have counsel, but none desired to
be represented by counsel or to adduce any evidence in addition to his or her
own testimony.

We propose from time to time, as circumstances permit, to make further
interim reports before reporting finally. We are reporting now with regard
to the above named persons as we have concluded our investigation as to their
part in the activities mentioned, and we have been assured by Commission
Counsel that they have no further evidence to offer which can affect the opinion
we have formed on the evidence regarding these persons.

As already pointed out, we have been able to review the complete
activities of four only of the agents used by the officers of the Soviet Embassy.
The evidence indicates that, in addition, many other agents were active and that
information more intrinsically important has been disclosed. We are not,
however, as yet in a position to report with regard thereto, as the evidence has
not, been fully developed.

Respectfully submitted,

(Sgd.) ROBERT TASCHEREAU,
Royal Commissioner.

(Sgd.) R. L. KELLOCK,
Royal Commissioner.

His Excellency
The Governor General in Council,
Parliament Buildings,
OrrAWA.
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6. SECOND INTERIM REPORT OF THE ROYAL COMMISSION
TO THE GOVERNOR GENERAL IN COUNCIL
MARCH 14, 1946

(Made Public March 16, 1946)

Orrawa, Ontario,
14th March, 1946.

Your EXCELLENCY :(—
Re: Order in Council P.C. 411

Since the date of our interim report of the 28th of February last, we have
heard a great deal of evidence without as yet having been able to hear all the
witnesses whom it will be nccessary to hear to complete the investigation with
which we have been charged. Forty-eight witnesses have been heard in some
forty-four different sittings of evidence which affects an additional number of
persons concerning whom we now report.

Dr. Raymond Boyer, Assistant Professor of Chemistry at McGill University,
was, since 1940, under an oath of secrecy, engaged in secret research on explosives
under the National Research Council, the most important part of which
concerned the making, by a process different from that previously employed
anywhere else, of the explosive known as R.D.X. While so engaged, Dr. Boyer
was secretary of a sub-committee of the Associate Committee on Explosives of
the National Research Council, which was directly charged with the project.
This sub-committee was at first called the Research sub-committee and later the
Research and Development sub-committee,

This project, carried on between the years 1940 and 1945, was successful
and resulted in the building of a substantial plant in Canada where the product
was manufactured in substantial quantities. Large quantities were also
manufactured in the United States.

All the reports on the progress of this project were secret reports prepared
for the National Research Council and they are still secret, their distribution
being limited to a comparatively few persons. Most of these reports were
written by Dr. Boyer himself.

His name, and the fact that he had disclosed information with regard to
this secret project, appear in documents in the Russian Embassy produced before
us by the witness Gouzenko. We have now heard Dr. Boyer and he has told
us that commencing early in 1943, and continuing into 1944, he gave, for
transmission to the Soviet Union, full information with regard to his work which
he himself admits was secret. He said that with this information competent
persons would be in a position to design a plant to produce the material in
quantity.

Harold Samuel Gerson was employed from January, 1941, to July, 1944,
by Allied War Supplies, Limited, a Crown Company incorporated to supervise
the construction of facilities for the production of chemicals and explosives, and
later the production of these materials. Gerson was assistant to the head of the
production control department. Following this Gerson was employed by the
Department of Munitions and Supply until in or about November, 1945, when
he became an employee of the War Assets Corporation, also a Crown Company.
In the Department of Munitions and Supply he was Secretary and Chief of the
Records Division of the Ammunition Production Branch. While still with
Allied War Supplies, Limited, he was on loan to the Department of Munitions
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and Supply on occasion and, after going to War Assets Corporation, had still
some duties to perform in the Department. In connection with all of these
positions he was under an oath of seerecy.

In the notebook of Colonel Zabotin there is & page which reads in part:—

“GRAY . . . . chief of the branch of the Directorate for procuring
war material for the allies. Taken to work on 1.9.42. Works well.
Gives material on shells and cannon on photos.”

“GRaY” is the cover name used by the Embassy for Gerson. The material
Gerson supplied was not, however, later on limited to photos. :

Gouzenko also produced a document from the Embassy in the handwriting
of Gerson, as he admits to be a fact, which is a copy of part of a report dealing
with the testing of certain projectiles in England by the United Kingdom
authorities. These reports were sent regularly to the Canadian authorities from
England and were secret documents.

In a telegram of August 25, 1945, from Colonel Zabotin to “The Director”
in Moscow it is stated:—

“Gray was earlier given the task of taking all nccessary measures
for staying on his old job. At the last contact the latter stated that in
the near future great reductions will begin. In the event that it will be
impossible to remain on the old job Gray proposes to form a geological-
engineering consultative office in Ottawa. Gray is a geological engineer
by profession and therefore can head this office. The expenses for
organizing the office are as follows: rent of premises 600 dollars a year;
wages for one clerk, $1,200 a year; office equipment, $1,000; payment of
Gray as director—$4,200 a year; altogether it needs $7,000 dollars a year.
Gray said that Canada is entering a ‘boom’' period in the mining industry
and it is therefore very likely that within two years the office will be in a
position to support itself. The initial expenditure of its operation will be
returned in the future,

Gray thinks that it is necessary to begin establishing the office
gradually, that is, prior to his completion of the work at the old place.
I beg to get your decision.”

In August, 1945, reductions in the staff of the Department of Munitions and
Supply were being made on an increasing scale and Gerson did discuss with his
superior staying on in the Government service. He is an M.Sc. in geology of
McGill University and contemplated going into private practice if he could not
remain in the Civil Service. The figures mentioned in the telegram, he admits,
constitute expenses he would incur in setting up private practice, $4,200 being
his then salary in the Department. Gerson’s continuance in the public service
was evidently desirable to the US.S.R. so as to ensure the continuance of the
flow of information from him,

In & further telegram from Moscow, “The Dircctor” telegraphed Colonel
Zabotin as follows:—

“In the mail of 23.8.1944 were received from you Gray’s two
materials, the monthly reports on the rescarch of technological questions
in the field of production of war materials. On the basis of short and
unrelated data it is impossible to judge the method and work of the
Canadian and English production of explosives, powders and chemical
materials. It is therefore desirable to obtain the following information:

. 1. The method and technological process of the production of muni-
tions, explosives. 2. The formula for plastic explosives, the production of
T.H. and H.S. (their composition, purpose and specific qualities). 3. The
application of pierite and nitro-guanidine. 4. The technic of producing the
capsules of detonators and igniting capsules. Wire to whom do you
consider it possible to give the said task.

If Bacon still keeps on working in the Artillery Committee, this task
should be handed over to him.”
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Colonel Zabotin replied to this telegram as follows:—

“(1) The tasks will be detailed to Gray, Bacon and the ProrFessor through
Depouz. The ProFESsor is still on duty away from home. DeBouz
will meet at the end of the month. .

(2) MagTiN received reply from DEexkanozov with permission to return
home. As a result of MARTIN’s work at the San Francisco Con-
ference and his sickness about a month, the latter was unable to
write all his reports on your task. The question of the current
situation in Canada after the elections and the interruption of
the class forces in the country, he will write at our place and
we will send them to you by courier, while the remaining questions
of the task he will write at the centre.”

The “Proressor” was the cover name for Dr. Boyer. “Bacon” was the
cover name for one of the persons detained whom we have not as yet been
able to hear, while “DeBouz” is the cover name for the intermediary who
obtained the information, already referred to, given by Dr. Boyer. “MarTIN”
was the cover name of Zheivinov, the head of the Tass agency in Ottawa.

Another telegram from Zabotin to “The Director”, bearing date 28.4.44,
reads in part as follows:—

“Gray’s wife has relatives in Bukovina and Bucharest. Apart from
the relatives she has many acquaintances among doctors and other
specialists. Recently Gray handed Davie a reply of the Canadian Red
Cross of March, 1942, wherein it is announced that the relatives of
Gray’s wife are in their own places, that is in Roumania. Gray’s wife,
through Gray, asks advice as to whether it is possible to send them money
or other things.

Davie replied that this was a complicated and difficult question,
and that he could not promise anything. He suggested he be furnished
with addresses and letters from Gray’s wife for these acquaintances.
In the letters it could be proposed (that is through Gray’s wife—he will
agree to that) that they contact the man who delivers the letter. If you
agree to such an idea we shall receive the addresses and letters from
the wife of GrRay. Roofs of the doctor and other specialists.”

“Davie” is the cover name of Major Sokolov. “Roofs” is a cover expression
indicating secret activities. Gerson’s wife, or her family, he has told us, did
receive a letter from the Canadian Red Cross in reply to inquiries made
regarding relatives in Europe. The telegram indicates that Mrs. Gerson'’s
acquaintances among professional people in Bukovina and Bucharest might
be employed to receive and transmit letters in secret.

Another document produced before us by Gouzenko shows that corre-
spondence on onec single subject handed over by Gerson amounted to one
hundred and fifty pages.

On all the evidence, including certain admissions made by Gerson himself,
it is clearly established that the latter has communicated, over a considerable
period, secret information to the representatives of the Soviet Union in viola-
tion of the Official Secrets Act and we so report.

Squadron Leader Matt Simons Nightingale attended Military School in
Mobile, Alabama, and graduated from MecGill University in 1928 with the
degree of B.Sc. in engineering. He also attended a private course at the same
institution on transmission and engineering telephone work, and later was
months of 1945 when he returned to the Bell Telephone Co. of Canada on his
facturing telephone equipment.
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In 1928 he joined the Bell Telephone Co. of Canada as telephone trans-
mission engineer, where he remained until 1942, when he enlisted in the R.C.A.F.
and was posted to the Branch Land Lines, Technical Section, until the early
months of 1945 when he returned to the Bell Telephone Co. of Canada on his
discharge.

While in this special branch of the R.C.AF. he was mainly concerned with
land lines communication on both the east and west coasts and also worked
on the Gander project, which embodies one of the main systems of communica-
tion on the east coast. He acknowledged the secret nature of the duties entrusted
to him throughout.

The original telegrams from the Russian Embassy to Moscow give, as to
Squadron Leader Nightingale, known in these telegrams under the cover name of
“LeaDER”, items which he admitted having supplied, to wit, his photograph and
information as to the nature of his experience with the Bell Telephone Co. and
the R.C.A.F. One document from the Embassy reads in part as follows:—

“Squadron Leader

Mat Nantingale, 155 O'Connor St., Apt. 1, Telephone 2-4545. Sax is
known to him as WaLTER. The first meceting took place 19.12.44 at 21
o’clock at the house.

Possibilities: 1. Network of Aerodromes in the country (both coasts).
2. Map of the coast.

Prior to the war he worked with the Bell Telephone Co. On 21.1.45
he advised BrenT about his demobilization. He is going to the Bell
Company. Next contact on 24.2.45 at 20.30 at the corner of Elgin-
Macleod Sts. At the contact on 24.2.45 he gave the address Montreal,
1671 Sherbrooke 57 (51). Telephone 1.1684. Next contact 24.3.45 at

20.30 Metcalfe-Somerset. He will give the coast (RAF) and listening-in
on the telephone.
Task—1. Recruiting (call-up).

2. Materials of the company.

3. DuBox—GiNI—how.”

“BRreNT” is the cover name for Lieutenant-Colonel Rogov. “Dupox” means
a hiding place. “Gini” is a cover name for an individual.

Heard as a witness, Nightingale said that after mecting Lieutenant-Colonel
Rogov by accident on a train between Ottawa and Montreal, he had several
mectings with Rogov at his own apartment and on the street in Ottawa and
Montreal and in Rogov’s room in Montreal on one occasion. In these conversa-
tions he says various subjects were referred to in a gencral way amongst which
were the following, namely, listening-in telephonic devices, linking up of airports,
land lines communications, network and location of aerodromes, maps of the
R.C.AF. and, possibly, the Gander project, some of which matters were of a
secret nature.

His mterview with Rogov, his explanation of those interviews which we
are unable to accept, his association with other persons involved in the matter
which is the subject of the present investigation, the references to him in the
documents found in the Russian Embassv, as well as the fact that documents
of a secret nature belonging to the R.C.A.F. which he should not have retained
were found in his possession after his discharge, suggest to us that, if he did
not in fact give to the U8 S.R. sceret and confidential information, he may very
well have conspired to furnish such information. Furthermore, his unauthorized
retention of the above mentioned documents would appear to have been in
violation of the provisions of the Official Secrets Act.
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Dr. David Shugar is a Ph.D. in physics, McGill University, having been
born in Poland in 1915. From January, 1941, until February, 1944, he was
employed at Research Enterprises, Limited, Toronto, when he entered the Navy,
becoming a Lieutenant in the Directorate of Electrical Supply. He remained
in the Navy until his discharge January 31, 1946. Subsequently he was employed
in the Department of Health and Welfare. While in the Navy, Shugar was
engaged on rescarch with respect to certain equipment used in anti-submarine
detection. In the course of his duties he had to visit various naval establish-
ments, including laboratories, in Canada, the United States and the United
Kingdom.

Although Gouzenko had never seen him, he knew who Shugar was and the
work in which he was employed. In a document produced by Gouzenko headed
“Assignment No. 1, SaM to SHUGAR”- outlining information desired from Shugar,
seven subjects of inquiry relating to anti-submarine detection are laid down,
all of which informasion, Shugar has told us, was either in his possession in
connection with his work, or aceessible to him at Naval Headquarters,

In a later document headed “Task No. 2", assigned to the same agent, the
following item appears:—

' “Communicate how the matter stands of the former assignment for
Lieutenant Shugar.” -

The answer made by the agent to Rogov is indicated by what Rogov wrote

on the document against the above item, namely,
“At the present time he is working maritime staff. He has consented
to work for us but with special caution. He has been under observation.”

SHuGAR admitted having met the agent to whom we have referred above on
at least three occasions, and that the agent was inquisitive.
ol A telegram from Colonel Zabotin to Moscow No. 232 reads in part as
ollows:— :

“We have agreed with Sam about the transfer of connections to us
with PROMETHEUS. The latter is at present in Florida. The transfer will
take place in the town of Sam. I consider it expedient to give BRENT the
connection with PROMETHEUs. Sam promised to give us severa] officers
from central headquarters of the active forces. At the present time it is
fairly diffieult to do this, as changes in the staffs are taking place by
officers returning from overseas.”

“PrROMETHEUS” is the cover name used to denote Shugar and “Brent” was
Rogov.
In reply the “Director” telegraphed to Zabotin:—
“To Grant.
Your telegram No. 232
(1) In my telegram of 19.7, I have advised that until the information
is received from ProMETHEUs and until his possibilities in the Navy
Department are established, contact with him should be maintained
through Frank. Should it prove that PrRoMETHEUS is a truly valuable
man to us, direct contact may then be established with him. However,
it is not desirable to entrust BrREnT with making the contact. If you
should find no objection, it is better to let CHESTER make this contact.
Have in mind that we have here almost no other information on
ProMETHEUS except his family name and his place of employment.
Wire in full his name and family name, his position in the Navy
Department and the address of this residence. Collect the remaining
data and send by mail.




20

(2) As for obtaining persons from the said departmental services,
we are interested. Let Frank, after the staffs have been sct up,
recommend one or two candidates for our consideration.”

“CuesTER” was the cover name for Captain Gorshkov who acted as chauffeur
for the Soviet Military Attaché in Ottawa.

Shugar denies having given, or having agreed to give any secret information,
but has no explanation for the existence, in the documents above referred to,
of the references to himself. We were not impressed by the demeanour of
Shugar, or by his denials, which we do not accept. In our view we think he
knows more than he was prepared to disclose. Therefore, there would seem to
be no answer on the evidence before us, to a charge of conspiring to communicate
seeret information to an agent of the USS.R.

These four persons are or were all government officials, or persons holding
positions of trust. All have been heard before us as witnesses and, in accord-
ance with Sections 12 and 13 of the Inquiries Act, Cap. 99, R.S.C. 1927, have
been offered the opportunity of having counsel. Two of them declined and
two others, after consultation with counsel, stated that they did not wish to
call evidence or to have representations made to the Commission by counsel
on their behalf. Accordingly we have been free to report with regard to them
as above.

We may also point out that under P.C. 411, which is our authority for
the present inquiry, we are required to report not only “upon which public
officials and other persons in trust or otherwise have communicated, directly
or indirectly, secret and confidential information”, but also upon “the facts
relating to and the circumstances surrounding such communications”.

The evidence discloses that one of these circumstances is that other Cana-
dians, who are not government officials, have been the intermediaries through
whom secret and confidential information has reached the Russian Embassy,
as in the case of Dr. Raymond Boyer. As the evidence develops, we shall be
in a better position to deal with these intermediaries at a later stage.

In conclusion, we may add that we regret not having been able to com-
plete as yet the hearing of evidence with regard to the five other persons who
are detained under the provisions of P.C. 6444, passed on October 6, 1945,
but we hope that we will be able to do so shortly. On February 14 last we
concurred in the advice given by counsel for the Commission to the Honourable
the Minister of Justice that certain named persons should be detained, and
we did so because of the serious nature of the disclosures then indicated by
the evidence we had heard, and the fact that cover names of persons who had
not been identified appeared in the evidence which indicated that the rami-
fications of the disloyal practices and the persons engaged therein might be
even greater than then appeared and might well be continuing. In effect the
matters with which the inquiry was concerned appeared to us to be of so serious
a nature from the national standpoint that we believed the course advised
by counsel should be pursued in the exceptional circumstances existing. The
further evidence which we have heard has not caused us to change this view
but, on the contrary, has confirmed it.

In a case of this nature where the evidence has revealed the existence
of an organization constituting at least a threat to the safety and interests
of the state, as evidenced by the fact that some witnesses holding strategic

ositions have made the significant statement under oath that they had a loyalty
which took priority over the loyalty owed by them to their own country, and
for that reason they acted as they did, and would unquestionably have con-
tinued so to act had they not been detected, we are of opinion that should
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these persons be allowed communication with outsiders or between themselves
until their activities have been fully investigated, some of the basic purposes
of this inquiry would be entirely defeated.

Respectfully submitted,

(Sgd.) ROBERT TASCHEREAU,
Royal Commissioner

(Sgd.) R. L. KELLOCK,
Royal Commissioner.

His Excellency
The Governor General in Council,
OTTAWA.




7. PRIME MINISTER'S STATEMENT ON TABLING THE
SECOND INTERIM REPORT OF THE ROYAL COMMISSION,
HOUSE OF COMMONS, MARCH 15, 1946

In the statement which I made public on February 15th I said that it
was the intention of the Government that prosecution would be instituted in
cases in which the evidence warranted it. 1 have been advised by the Attorney
General of Canada that charges have been laid against the four men named
in the Second Interim Report of the Royal Commission, namely Dr. Raymond
Boyer, Harold Samuel Gerson, Squadron Leader Matt Simons Nightingale,
and Dr. David Shugar.

The charge against Dr. Boyer alleges conspiracy with an intermediary
who was not named in the Commission’s Report because he had not been
examined by the Commission. The intermediary, referred to in the Report by
the cover name Debouz, is believed to be the Honourable Member for Cartier.

I am further informed by the Attorney General of Canada, who has taken
the advice of Counsel whose opinions I wish to lay on the table of the House,
that effective prosecution of the charge against Dr. Boyer requires similar action
in respect of the Member for Cartier, against whom an appropriate informa-
tion has been laid and a warrant for his arrest executed.
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8 LETTERS OF COUNSEL TABLED BY THE PRIME MINISTER
IN THE HOUSE OF COMMONS, MARCH 15§, 1946

- (A)

OTrawa, 14th Mareh, 1946.

The Honourable L. S. St. Lavrent, K.C,,
Minister of Justice,
Ottawa.

Dear Mr. Minister,—

Wlhen we reported to vou the gist of the cvidence developed against Dr.
Raymond Boyer and the fact that it seemed to implicate a Member of Parliament
you asked us to consider the two following questions:—

(a) Whether a Federal Member of Parliament who would have committed
2 crime under the Official Secrets Act can be arrested either during the
coming session of Parliament or within the few days which remain
before its opening on the 14th instant?

(b) Whether taking into account the whole of the circumstances surround-
ing this investigation it would be advisable or inadvisable to obtain
the issue of a warrant of arrest against this Member at the same time as
that to be issued against the individual who divulged to this Member
certain important war secrets for the benefit of a foreign power?

Qur answers to these questions arc:—

(a) Yes.

(b) It would not only be advisable but the interest of justice would not
be served and the other trial would be prejudiced if a warrant were
not issued against the Member at the same time as that issued against
the individual.

Our dutics before the Royal Commission made it impossible to consider this
question as thoroughly as we should have liked to do and we requested Hon.
F. P. Brais, K.C., counsel appointed by you to prosecute the other individual, to
ussist us with his opinion.

We have now received it and it eonfirins the views we held in this matter
and sets out the authorities upon which the opinion is based. We are enclosing
it with this letter as we entirely concur in it.

Each of us will be available for further discussion if deemed necessary.
Yours very truly,
(Sgd.)  E. K. WILLIAMS
(8gd.) GERALD FAUTEUX

(Sgd.) D. W. MUNDELL
Counsel for the Commission.
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(B)

BRAIS & CAMPBELI
Royal Bank Building
360 St. James Street West,
Montreal, March 12, 1946
E. K. WiLniams, Esq., K.C,,
G. H. Fauteux, Esq., K.C,,
Justice Building,
Ottawa, Ontario.

Secret and Confidential

DEAR Sins:
You have asked my opinion whether:

(a) A Federal Member of Parliament who would have committed a crime
under the Official Secrets Act can be arrested either during the coming
session of Parliament or within the few days which remain before
its opening on the 14th instant?

(b) if question {a) is answered in the afirmative, whether it would be
advisable or inadvisable to obtain the issue of a warrant of arrest
against this Member at the same time as that to be issued against
the individual who divulged to this Member certain important war
secrets for the benefit of a foreign power?

(a) 1 have not been informed of any of the activities of the Member
in question save what appears from the deposition of the individual whose
arrest we discussed over the week-end.

That statement does clearly show that the Member obtained important
information and declared that it was for the use of a foreign power.

It would appear clearly, thercfore, that a charge could be laid against the
Member under Section 3C and probably 4(1)A and B, 4(2), 4(3), of the Official
Scerets Act.

" No specific penalty is provided in the Act for the commission of the above
offences and the offender would therefore be subject to Section 14 which declares
them to be indictable.

Chapter 147, RS.C., “An Act Respecting the Senate and House of
Commons,” Sections 4 and 5 provide:

“4, The Senate and the House of Commons respectively, and the
wembers thereof respectively, shall hold, enjoy and exercise,

(a) such and the like privileges, immunities and powers as, at the time of
the passing of the British North America Act 1867, were held, enjoyed
and exercised by the Commons House of Parliament of the United
Kingdom, and by the members thereof, so far as the same are consistent
with and not repugnant to the said Act; and

such privileges, immunities and powers as are from time to time defined

by Act of the Parliament of Canada, not exceeding those at the time-*

of the passing of such Act held, enjoyed and exercised by the Commons

House of Parliament of the United Kingdom and by the members

thereof respectively, R.S,, ¢.10, s. 4.

5. Such privileges, immunities and powers shall be part of the general
and public law of Canada and it shall not be necessary to plead the same,
but the same shall, in all courts of Canada, and by and before all judges,
be taken notice of judicially. RS, ¢.10, s.5.”
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Bourinot’s Parliamentary Procedure, Third Edition, Page 143, Chapter 2,
under the heading “Privileges and Powers of Parliament,” discusses “the
privileges, immunities and powers” to be enjoyed by Members. After discussing
the origin of privileges, he declares that 1t is a general principle of English
Parliamentary law that... “the privilege has been always leld to protect
Members from arrest and imprisonment under civil processes, whether the suit

- be at the action of an individual or of the public, but it is not claimable for

treason, felony, breach of peace or ‘any indictable offence’.”

Bourinot further states that a Member may be committed for Contempt
of Court when it is of a quasi criminal nature, “and the English House has not
of recent years deemed it expedient to interfere in cases of an open or gross
character.”

The right of Courts to enquire into the question of privilege is discussed by
Bourinot at Page 147 as follows:

“As Parliamentary privileges rest on statutory as well as customary
law it follows that they ean be inquired into and determined by courts of
law like any other rights. In the words of an authority: ‘It seems now to
be clearly settled that the courts will not be deterred from upholding private
rights by the fact that questions of Parliamentary privilege are involved
in their maintenance; and that, except as regards the internal regulation of
its proceedings by the House, courts of law will not hesitate to inquire into
alleged privilege, as they would into local custom, and determine its extent
and application’ (0).”

It would appear clear that a Member who has committed an indictable
offence is therefore liable to arrest at any time and any placc except on the
floor of the House when it is sitting.

{b) Would it be advisable or inadvisable to charge the Member at the
same time as the individual from whom the information was obtained.

The failure to charge the Member at the same time would appear highly
inadvisable. The origin of the trouble, the cause of the temptation and downfall
of the individual in question arises entirely and exclusively from the actions of
the Member. The failure 1o eharge the latter at the same time and bring him
hefore the Courts if possible would inevitably give rise to a reaction which in
my opinion would be entirely prejudicial to the proper disposal of the complaint.

Obviously at the present time and insofar as my information goes, the
only evidence against the Member would be the testimony of the individual who
gave him information. The Member might see fit to offer his own testimony
and deny the whole story. The court might then have to decide between the
credibility of a witness and an accused. The fact, however, that the witness
has incriminated himself by the story and is himself separately charged should,
in my opinion, lead any judge to conclude that the version cannot be untrue,
the more so in that there is nothing to indicate any unfriendliness whatsoever
between the two persons.

Obviously they would have to be separately charged. There should be in
my opinion, added a count of conspiracy referring to the substantive offences
themselves.

I have not before me all the information arising out of the cases and it is
quite possible that certain facts may lead one to another conclusion, but relying
for the moment solely on the deposition which I now have, I feel quite definitely
that the non-arrest of the Member would not only he prejudicial to the other
case but to the interest of justice in general.

Yours very truly,

(Sgd.) F. P. BRAIS.
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No. 438 of March 26th.

Following for Hollis from Cussen.

A. Director and Cussen arrived here early Monday morning.
B, Director has made contact with High Commission, External

Affairs, RCMP, Ministry of Justice and Commission Council.

© Crown Copyright



The National Archives' reference KV 2/1422

No. 436 of 26th March.

a
W0
; @“
My telegram 432.
A. FBI inform me POPOV left treain in New York and proceeded
immediately to Consulate.

Be He is under surveillance and FBI still hope for occasion

to approach him.

© Crown Copyright
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NEW YORK,
No. 433 of March 26th.

Situation here at present appears to be as follows: -
A. Montreeal:

CORBY has completed his evidence. You may have seen from
press reports that suggestion in my telegrem 413 that such
material would be used has been confirmcd as fact. Yau should
know that once gf j@éF;Lﬁmitted for trial, prosecution will
fall under Jurisdiction of Quebec Provincial Govermment,

i

For your personal information only repeat only‘2222§§§£§,
Premier of Quebec, is no repeat no friend Ofu%:;wﬁﬁUEENES You

W\ will appreciate that case against ROSE cannot now suffer from
L_‘any lack of zeal later.
B. CORBY's half hour statement on idealogical reasons for
his action mede profound impression which is reflected in press
and it is generally felt his testimony and its sincerity will

cripple C.P. Canada for considerable time at least in Quebec.

My immediately following telegram.

Note: Mr. Hollis: Will you please treat second paragraph of
"A" as "personal only", |

-
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NE¥ YORK,

No. 434 of March 26th.

My immediatel;r preceding telegram. VELT2D
, \'ZOOS\\‘\\D . ‘ ”
C. E‘FILLSHE;R sefully turned King's evidence. {LUNAldbegan to

E oM X

do so but took fright at leading questions. It is most regrettable

that his Counsel does not appear to have explained clearly to

him that he enjoyed protection of the Court and he was obviously
afraid of incriminating himself. As a result he was committed

for contempt and is in jail without bail.

D. Ottawa: Testimony of remaining detainees should be concluded
this week and third interim report may be expected at week-end

or beginning of next week. I believe Prime Minister will at
earliest opportunity rescind order in council which will mean

that all further hearings by Commission will be under subpoena.

I understand Commission is then likely to adjourn for a fortnight

to write their major report.

My immediately following telegram.
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No. &22 of March 26tho

My immediately preceding telegram.

E. Commission will then be likely to hear under subpoena

persons involved but not in Government service. I believe

. . 1.PF60Y <0 -
these may include: ' CARR 11? he car be “ound), Doctor SOBOLEFF,

..wsc'v.:ar\

Doctor HARRIS, thleeal WITC ZAK‘\personnel of Passport afflce,
& r 05
BER"(MAN) (for which 1 am pfessmg) &HAPMANA OGERS, "VEALL

- -

9 (]
o¢. Uo"?\ )1 LRABINOVITCH)(subJect agreement ?(of you) and External Affairs),

GIN%G fLINI‘Olﬂand other less important characters of some
PclLo> UK.

interest. Above programmne and names are purely tentative

and subject to revision. |

F. You will no doubt wish to know that in statement to Press

last night Dorise NEILSON, former M.P. and leading Communist,

maintained that CORBY is S.I.S. plant.
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TOP SECRET.

Addressed NEW YORK.

No. 593.

A. Right Wing French paper Epoque of 22nd Februeary quoting
Ve
alleged remarks by DUPLESSIS (not repeet not available)
At

comnented that it seemed certain that Communist Party of
France was in touch with Soviet network in Canada.

B. For your information only BJs informs us that French
Government have recently been meking enquiries about this,
Ce Same source shows that report appears to have been
based on United Press message published only in Quebec
Catholic Action and Montreal Daily Star of 19th February.
D. ©Please pass paragraph A. to RCMP as from Hollis.

At your discretion you may also pass paragraph C.

© Crown Copyright
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No. 432 of March 25th.
Suyn V1A

My telegram 88 February 2nd.

A. Gregory POPQV left here last night travelling on
transi:’:::.sa.through United States en route Russia. His
imnediate destination is supposedly Washington.

B. I drew FBI's attention to fact that he is almost
certainly being recalled in disgrace and they propose

to attempt to approach him if occasion offers with view
to persuading him to follow in CORBY's footsteps.

Ce I believe they may have some reasonable change of
success since his wife end child are travelling with him

and he must be well aware of what awaits him if he returns.

© Crown Copyright
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TOP SECRET. \ v

NEW YORK,
No. 426 of March 23rd.

Following for Sargent from Mecdonald repeated Ialifax.

Your telemran 5(‘1;.."ﬁ“

Please inform Machtig, Dominions Cffice, thai Coraudssion
may still press for evidence by Munro in connection allegations
of which he will be aware regarding certein finenciel Adociments,
I am hopeful thet if so his sjjearance Lolore ther eon e
postponed until his return to North Aunerica as his ~viirnc
may not be necessary until fiinal report is under consideration.

But I felt that the Dominions Office and he might wish to have

this warning.

© Crown Copyright



The National Archives' reference KV 2/1422

No. 425 of March 23rd.

ok

My telegram 419.

ST

A. Press and radio reaction this morning both here and in
United States is far more moderate than might have been
expected and fortunately almost without exception stresses
part played by Communist Party in operations.

B. Main damage would therefore seem to be mention names
not yet released by Commission snd difficulties caused by
this can no doubt be met.

Ce. I understand Crown Irosecutor in Montreal has been warned

to %gﬁge ﬂswith more caution today.

D. [:Pdiﬁh 's|Counsel has issued writ of habeas corpus which
we expect to be allowed. This will enable it to be argued

to establish clearly before public legality order in Counsel.
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TOP SECRET.

My telegem 415 para. C.
A. As you will probably hawe seen from New York reports Crown
Counsel in Montreal allowed Corby to g much further than was
intended or empected. Mention of five names of detainees
not yet released by Commission would seem to me most dndesirable

and peossibly prejudicial.

B. Press have also qoted names of md/VEAli{as agents 16695

and this mqy prove particularly damaging to whole case since

almost wtainly’ méther were actual agents. This could
L -‘v - eie -,

thefefore throw doubt on reliability of rest of Corby's evidence

in bands of good del-ce lawyer. T r_, . am

(F 72203/2. - .
C. Mention o Arthur STEINBERG [and W]I[‘CZAK without prior

warning to FBI or USA govermment would again seem most injudicious.
D. General opinion at the moment seems to be that desirability

p-a¥ s
of establishing strong case against LROSE-}L“ Quebec Courts would

not justify irrelevant lengths to which Counsel has gone.

E. I understand Extermel Affairs are seriocusly concermed at
head-lining of Corby's unexpected statement that in his opinion
Russia is prepering for third World War.

F. Above are my immediate impressions subject to revision.

I will telegraph further reactions tomorrew.

THIS IS A COPY
ORIGINAL DOCUMENT RETAINED
IN DEPARTMENT UNDER SECTION
3 (4) OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS

ACT 1958, BINYAN 2003
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No. 414 of Merch 22nd.

A. Fxamination of ADAMS office calendar pad shows 2 entries
of interest: one dated July 6th reads "re WILGRESS memorandum”

and second dated September 11th reads "KEYNES sunmary”.

B. #hile this proves nothing, it does nevertheless show
PE Loy, 4L

definitely that Amms]could have had access to 3 documents
W -

attributed to ELLI in GRANT's mail list.
C. This would lead us to suppose that these entries might
therefore have b:en wrongly attributed to ELLI or cquld equally

support theory in paregraph A. of my telegram 228.\ rl'l&-
(véh: <)

© Crown Copyright
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TOF SECHET.

No,. &12 of March 22ndo

A. It is most likely that at preliminary hearing of ROSE in
Montreal today Crovn will put in evidence everything they

possibly cen which connects ROSE with Corby case, reserving

little or nothing to final {riel
\ 7 Fos*
B. 'WILLSHER has een su en as witness to testify

wsw “U 9‘ ‘1
concernin ROSE s\part in her recruitment.
Wexow . -
C. Y u may pos ibly be surprised at szount of mat-rial which
will be used but reason for this is that Montreal Courts are

unpredictable and Crown is anxious t:» ensure that strongest

pos=ible case is made against ROSE immediately while joing is

good.
D. Whether or not use of all this material may possibly

prejudice cases still to be heard later in Junario oourts

remains to be seen.

© Crown Copyright


clement2
Highlight
Y--U may pos ibly be surpi ised at amount of material which
will be used but reason for this is that Montreal Courts are
unpredictable and Crown is anxious t ■ ensure that strongest
possible case is made against ROSE immediately while going is
good.
D. Whether or not use of all this material may possibly
prejudice cases still to be heard later in Junario oourts
remains to be seen


The National Archives' reference KV 2/1422

No. 411 of March 21st,

-

My telegram 406 paragraph B.

As a result RCMP pressure it has now been decided that

public will not repeat not be allowed in Court while CORBY

is giving evidence (gr. mut.) only reliable newsmen will be

present,
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TOP SECRET.

No. 407 of March 21st.

Agiste

Your telegrem 532 paragraph B.
DEOCARDED

A, igﬂfﬁpvqag must be consulted in this matter (see my telegram
~305) is in United Kingdom and will not return to Caneda for about

10 days.

B. It would not be necessery to publish Swiss story in detail

butﬂyou; will understand that mein object of enquiry into

RABD?O%I'T’;I?{ s activities is to uncover link from United States

———tn

to Switzerland and ?now Swiss angle could not be omitted. There

would be no repeat no need for Paris and Egypt adventure to be

mentioned.

Ce If, as you say, large part of Swiss story has become public

it is not entirely clear to us how further reference to it here

need affect Swiss Soviet relations.

D. There is plenty of time¢ for consideration of this matter as

first stage of Commission is likely to continue for another week.

Commissioners will then require at least a further week, making

a fortnight in all, to complete their final report. They are then

li<ely tackle second stage of their investigation which will deal

with suspects not repeat not in Canadian Governmept service. This
\' JV.\
second stage will begin with investigation of WITC§£§ppassport
O
matter and you will therefore see that it w1&1 be & minimum of

© Crown Copyright
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three weeks before RABINOWITCH matter could be dealt with.

E. We will revert to this matter later.

© Crown Copyright
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TOP SECRET. \ ks

No. .06 of March 21st.

Ny telegram 599./4

Ae SMITH continued testimony- yesterday which i= still uncompleted.
He still answers direct and dangerous questions by saying that he

is unable to recall incidents and has suggested that Corby documents
are clever forgeries obtained by inducem~nt. He has given no

information of wvalue.

F9&41
B. [@(OSE and BOY®R appear for preliminary hearing in Montreal

court tamorrow, It is obviously desirable from a political
standpoint that ROSE should be heard in public and Crown Prosecutor
is in favour of this. However Corby will be called as witness

and ROMP are bringing considerable pressure to have his evidence
taken in camera since Corby himself is alarmea at possibility of
appearing in public. This has not yet been resolved but at

moment it appeers likely that Corby's evidence will not be taken

in camera though newspapers will be warned that no photographs

are dllowed.

© Crown Copyright
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Addressed:

NEY YORK,

No., 576.

Following for RCMP from Hollis.
A. PFollowing information has been received from a confidential
source.

B. At some date unknown a perty was given in Ottawa to about

C. At the party in question there were present Kathleen
WILISHIRE, Mrs. MAZERALL and a party of Russian men. 411
the peo'ple at the party were keenly interested in C.C.F. and
impression given was that the Russian contact with and
interest in C.C.F. was very close.

D. Party was held in a flat owned by a Jew whose only
available particulars are that he possesses what is described

as a remerksble aquarium.

- THISIS A COPY

ORIGINAL DOCUMENT RETAINED
IN DEPARTMENT UNDER SECTION
g}r) OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS

1958. 5N 2005

© Crown Copyright
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u-?-’"

\
Dear Philby, P %

I refar to your (.. of 13 3«46. We have no

Re5e B )
recoxd of wh(% nor have wo any informstion about
remarks nst@ ¥R or for that matier by anybody
.else upon ahich the w rsport could r=asonably
hsve been based., I corxfess that I think 1%
extremaly unlikely that any such remark was ever
mads, but I suggest that the matter sould be cleared
up by despatching a signal to the R.CellePe If
you agree perhaps you would kindly semd a signal
as from Hollls in the terms of your letter undexr
reply. .

Yours sincerely,

J. He Marriotti,

H..al.R-Phd-lw kq- .O-B.E. »
SeleSe

© Crown Copyright
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TOP SECRET.

Addressed:

NEW YORK,

No.565.

Following for RCMP from Hollis.

Reference Sargent's telegram 556 para. F.
A. Mr., T. Mathew, Director of Public Prosecutions, accompanied
by Lt. Colonel Cussen, Legal Adviser to M.I.5., is leaving
on Sunday 24th by T.C.A. plane for Dorvsl.
B. Passage has been arranged by 0ffi e of Canadian High
Commissioner here.
C. They hope to return by March 3lst.

D. ©Pleese meke all necessary arrangements.

© Crown Copyright
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THE ORIGINAL DOCUNENT]
RETAINED IN DEPAH‘llJMg\\Jj’ﬂ
UNDER SECTION 3(4) OF

© Crown Copyright
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sad

TOP SECRER.

Addressed to:

NEW YORK.

Following from Hollis for RC:iP.

Our 528 pera. B.
A & L%

Experts confirm preliminary view that documents in question
had no special security value in 1942 other than obviously

attached to such documents in time of war.

© Crown Copyright
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TOP SECKET.

No. 391 of Mmarch 18th.

Following for sargent from MacDonalu repeated Halifax.

Your telegram 555. - paep \QUW -

Canadian authorities concerned have been informed in
accordance with paragraphs A. to E. I understand that as
soon as result of our proceedings on March 19th are known
they are likely to make foreshadowed formal request for
Primrose's evidence to be made available in some form to
Commission.

2. Your paragraph F. Canadian authorities would greatly
welcome visit by Director of Public Prosecutions accompanied
by any advisers he may wish bring and time suggested would
be quite convenient. You will no doubt advise me of

developments.

© Crown Copyright
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N 1
i Ll +S 7%

TOP_SECRET AW PERSONY ey, 20

OFFICE OF THE :-e:g

HIGH COMMISSIONER FOR CANADA, }’r =
PR N
CANADA HOUSE, J v
TS

LONDON, S.W.I. 2

18+h March, 1946. yq ..
|

Dear Holl{is,

v"v
-’

I am enclosin:, for your information, copies of
tvo telegrams we have received from External Affalrs
concerning the second interim report of the Royal Commission.
There is nothing new in these telegrams but you may find of
interest the explanation given for some of the comments in
the report.

Yours sincerely,

) W Adtae

R. Hollls kEsa.,
58, St. James's Street,
SO “'- 1.

© Crown Copyright
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SECRETARY OF STATE FOR EXTERNAL AFFATRS OTTAVA
T0: HIGH COMMISSIONER FOR CANADA, IONDOH
DATED: 15th March, 1946.
RFC'D: 15th March, 1946.

Paris No. 105.
Second Interim Report of the Royal Commission is being

tabled in Parliament to-day. It is about 3,500 words in length

anc mainly devoted to fairly detailed account of the evidence

involving four further persons, including several nuotations
?Z”bnf'l

from telegrams sent and received by D% ABO'I‘INn The persons

n:meé are Raymon Royer, Assistant Professor of Chemistry at MeGill,

who was engaged in secrel Government work on explosives during

' | (’Gcrson)
the var, F.8. Gersok, employed by Crown Compmnles and aleso bty

L e e

Yunitions and Supplwv, an expert on ordnance, former Scuadren

Leader Nightingale, 2 communications expert concerned with RCAF

comnunications in Canada and Newfoundland, aad David Shusar, a

physicist, who served with the Navy on Research on submarine
detection devices. The prosecution of 211 four is recommended
by the Commission.
2. The report concludes with some general paragraphs
stating

(a) That the evidence discloses that other Canadians not
Government officials have been intermediaries for transmission
of information to the Soviet Embassy,

(b) That the exceptional course followed in detaining
Canzdians under Special War Powers has feen justified by the
evidenc2 given, and "

L- @
(ci That since so

© Crown Copyright
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they nrd a loyalty which took priority over that to their owm

countr; and hence =r:ted =2s they did some of the basic purposes

of t.e enquiry vould be defwates if thnse to be :¥amin-d were
pen:itted contact with outsiders or betveen themselves before
the full investigation oi their activities.

e Points (b) and (¢) "bove relate- to tie pllic concevu
vhi-l has been disclayved over the use oi the procedars
agtiiorice:’ in the Var Veasuves ACt so «s to nomii the
interrce ticn and temporsvy deteniion of the thirlcen Ca =714,
w0 have & meare’ oi will =annear hefore the Commivisior. N
Commission has stil' t complete the ~earin’s in fi=i ricees ¢7

those detained »hicii 3 furtlier introrim report io emectec.

SECRETARY <# STATE rOR FYTErRGAL AFFMTR-,

© Crown Copyright
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SECRETARY OF STATR FOR EXTVPHAL AFFATRS, 033
PUBLFYX Y HIGH COMVISSIONER FOR CENADE, TONOON &

15th March, 1946.

15th March, 1946.

Paris ~o. 106
My preceding telegram concerning Royal Comuission's
investigation.

K’Fred Ros ) Labour Progressive !*.P. for

dontreal-Cartier, was arrested last ni;ht on oh .1

aricinzy out of the Rovel Commission's investi rztinn.

Ld 8l A - - '.'
Fvidence and documents before the Commission in 14«

that Rose was intermediary between Foyer arons others
and the Soviet Military Attache. He was not exmninad
by the Commission whose terme of refercnce are

limited to present and former officials.

SECRETARY OF STATE FOR LXTOVHAL AU AISE.

© Crown Copyright
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TOP SECRET.

No. 381 of March 16th.

B

My telegram 342 of March 1llth.

A. Cockroft informs me WALLACE leaves here for United
Kingdom on Queen Mary sailing from New York about March 20th
for a few months visit.

B. Commission Counsel have decided they do not repeat not
wish call him and therefore no steps have been taken to
interfere with his trip.

C. You may wish interview him concerning Primrose on

arrivsal.

© Crown Copyright
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In reply, state NUMBER and DAT

wn

CX._ . dated 13th March 1946.

Re 5eBe

—

Dear Hollis, " - -

We have a report stating that the right
paperx%[of 22nd February gmtzng‘ll %ﬁﬁé
Quebec State, remarked "it secems ams certain to—day .
that the French Commmist Darty was in contact with the S& \U
Soviet spy network in Canada®.

Have you any information about remarks by DUPLESSIS
on which "Epoque” could reasanably have based such accusations?

We have, unfortunately, no cauplete copy of the paper
in question.

1 r T
HIS IS A copy :

ORIG! NAL DOCUMENT RETAINED

ARTM NT UNDER SECTION

|Aé‘,’) Eusuc REGURUS

R. Hollis Bsg.

M.I.5.

© Crown Copyright
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TOP SECRET.

Telegram from:

NEW YORK,

No. 380 of March 15th.

L. Fact-Egiﬁw}ike other four, has now been released on bail
gives rise to most delicate situation as to whether or no he

will teke his seat in House.

B. If he does this (and he has said he will) he would presumably

be in a position to comment on statement which Prime Minister is

to make on Corby case on Monday in debate on speech from Throne.

C. It would seem most likely that unless the House is prepared
to take some action to suspend him pending the trial that this
would cause considerable embarrassment and would certainly be

best platform he could find for preparation of his defence.

© Crown Copyright
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No. 38O of March 15th.
A. Pact ROSE like other four, has now been released on bail
gives rise to most delicate situation as to whether or no he
will take his seat in House.
B. If he does this (and he has said he will) he would presumably
be in a position to comment on statement which Prime Minister is
to make on Corby case on Monday in debate on speech from Throne.
C. It would seem most likely that unless the House is prepared
to take some action to suspend him pending the trial that this
would cause considerable embarrassment and would certainly be
b<^st platform he could find for preparation of his defence*
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No. 371 of 15th March.

My telegrem 370.- d40a . -?(’th 2
A, As you will probably have seen fr@m press reportséOSE:]
was arrested shortly before midnight last night. He will
be charged this morning in Montreal.

Be PFour mentioned second interim report will elso be charged

this morning. Report itself is to table in due course in

House this afternoon and as Ju iageen released to press.

?
c. WOIKIN?\WILLSH{%& MAZET

bail.

LUNAN are all out on

© Crown Copyright
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INWARD TELEGRAM ¢

h g e Lo
I"RO;. ¢ CALKADA (L. ,) \ Ij(?
10 L. O,

L. 1lth lar., 1946, 9o1H paile
Hoe 12th " " 6,15 a.11-

o e vie gD O

No. 496
Ly telegram Nu, L4135 of 4th larch.

Four persons nameu appeared in Court agein
this morning when the Crown Prosscution stated that
additional charges under gection 4 of the ¢fficisl
Secrets act would be laild in the pext two dpys.

Ty WBQ et
&tiss &1113hé§9g;s re reaéﬁtea by Counsel
end did not elect Trisl or subiiit a ples. she was

reiaanded until 13th jjsrch, Counsel asked i'or bail
but the (Court took no aclion on this request.

: Copy to:-
-4 |

Box 500,
Parlt.St. Mr. R. Hollis

© Crown Copyright
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INWARD TELEGRAM

FROL! ¢ CALADA (ACTING H.C.)

TO: - D.O.

D. 4th liarey, 1946, 8413 Delln
R. 5th " " 64 38 asMo

No., 413

Llly desuatoh 1st Liarch lio. 80. Inte.-im report on the
Royal) Commission appointed to investigate the disclosure of
gecrets and ccallden tial information to unauthorised persons was
published at 12 noon £.5.T. today. Report states that evidence
so far heard establishes that 4 of the persons who had
previously been detailed for interrogation in connection with
the investigation have communicated directly or indirectly
secret and confidential iaformation to represcntatives of the
U.3.5.R. inwviolation of the Official Secrete Act of Cansda, 1939,

Liuch regret have to report that liiss K.lLi. Villsher,
Apsistant Registrar in this office is mentioned in the report
as one of the four pereons in question. She was arrested
soon after the publication of the report and charged on count
of conspirecy to provide secret information intended to be
ugeful to the Soviet Union and of having provided iaformatlon.

She has been remanded in custody until liarch 11th and
has reserved her plea. Further report will follow,

GCopy toi=-

Box 500,
Parlt.sSt. Mr. R. Hollis

© Crown Copyright
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NEW YORK.

No. 370 of 1l4th March.
ﬁ .
ot lf,"
oA L 75?1#-
My telegrams 355 and 36. (23) para. A.

Ae Five minutes before House reconvened~§9§E took his seat

on floor,

B. For this reason &t very last moment Prime Minister decided
not repeat not to table second interim report and it has there-
fore not been released to Press.

C. ROSE cannot be arrested on floor of House but he will be
arrested as soon as he leaves tonight. The other four will
not be charged until ROSE is apprehended.

D. Prime Minister stated in house that he would probably
table report tomorrow., Situation is still fluid and I can

give you no definite time for release though you may expect

it shortly.

© Crown Copyright
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No, 370 of 14th Farch.
o £ '
, s t f t •
My telegrams 355 and. (8 ^) para. A.
J
A. Five minutes before House reconvened ROSE took his seat
on floor.
B. For this reason at very last moment Prime Minister decided
not repeat not to table second interim report and it has therefore
not been released to Press.
C. ROSE cannot be arrested on floor of House but he will be
arrested as soon as he leaves tonight. The other four will
not be charged until ROSE is apprehended.
D. Prime Minister stated in house that he would probably
table report tomorrow. Situation is still fluid and I can
give you no definite time for release though you may expect
it shortly. i
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TOP SECRKT.

No. 368 of 14th March.

4. S@{Cﬁ?gpent has this afternoon issued fiat for arrest
sd’l

off PFred ROSE. He will be arre!ed if he can be round.

B.  GFRSON, SHUGAR, NIGHTINGALE snd BOYWR will be charged
lhaln arms - - - Lo Saiing

this afternoon.

© Crown Copyright
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St* Laurent has this afternoon issued fiat for arrest
Fred ROSE* | He will be arrested if he can be found
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No. 363 of March 1lith.

A, Second interim report apparently gives considerable details
concerning four agents named and quotes at some length from
Corby documents in each case.

B. I am informed main point made is that evidence shows agents
to have loyalty which takes precedence over loyalty to their
country and hence action taken with regard to deteinees was
essential.

C. Report indicates there is some doubt as to extent of
implicetion of NIGHTINGA%E.

D. Release is iikely to be in time to meke B.B.C., late news

tonight.

E. Holmes has seen this and requests it be shown to Sargent.

. , 71
Loy '"ﬂ |

© Crown Copyright
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Telegram from:

NEW YORK.

Following for RCMP from Hollis.

Please let us have a formal statement from Corby

explaining in detail how he learnt that Alec was May.

Please cable text of statement,

© Crown Copyright
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No. 357 of 13th March.

Following for Sargent from Holmes repeated Halifax,

Please see my telegrams 355 and 356.

I have confirmed from Robertson that programme regarding
second interim report is still on lines described but position
is a little fluid. I understand report is not likely to
include material on which United Kingdom authorities would
wish to comment beforehand. I shall however hope to arrange

for full text to be sent in advance though I fear that this

may precede publication by a few hours only.

\ [} b
W‘w | ’F

© Crown Copyright
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[oHe INAL DOCUME: . }
g?%\?&% IN DEPAR MCSF,
UNDER SECTION 5‘?.4»8
THE PUBLIC RECOAD
ACT 1658.@

© Crown Copyrlght
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No. &Z of 12th March.

Following for Sargent from MacDonal repeated Halifax.

My telegrem 341.

I am informed adjournment Commission from March lU,th

until March 19th has been cancelled owing to pressure of work.

© Crown Copyright
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NEW YORK.

3

N
, No. 355 of 12th Merch. lll/ l

A. Second interim report is due to be completed tonight. It

will neme NIGHTINCALE and BOYFF, Inclusion of GER.QN_and SHUGAR

elm e Wejet~ ™

367

will depend whether or no: they request to be represented by
Counsel before Commission - which would have to be done if they

so request before any adverse report cean be made. Also, as

rrGo

you will have s en, evidence ugainst SHUGAR is unfortunately

not concrete.

L

B. Report may possible be cabled by Prime Minister tomorrow

afternoon when house reconvenes. This would assist in counter=-
acting probable opposition criticism on civil liberties aspect
which it is felt might be raised on motion of adjourmment before
debate on speech from throne.

C. DPrime Minister has statement prepared outlining course of
events to date and explaining clear necessity for kind of action

taken.

© Crown Copyright
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TOP SECRET.

No. 2&2 of March 11lth,

Your telegram 498 March 2nd.
Phil’e Ruucll WRLWACE
i ‘ sCR . born Toronto April 19th 1915. Educated

at Umest of Toronto where he was Fellow in Applied Mathematics
from 1937 to 1940. Worked as instructor in mathematics at
University of Cincinnati 1940 to 1942 and at Mass. Institute

of Technology from summer of 1942 to December 1942 when he

applied for post and was accepted by Montreal laboratory of
National Research Council.

B. He became secretary of Montreal branch of Canadian Association
of Scientific Workers and attended as delegate to first convention
of this organisation in May 1945 in Ottawa.

C. Nothing appears on his file which would bear out Primrose's

evaluation of him though BOYER who knows him stated he believed

him to have "left wing" views.

un T1- 66 9/(-7’ /ZKZ;

W7 s O
’733 :
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TOP SECRET.

No. 341 of 11th March.

Following for Sargent from MacDonald repeated Halifax.

My telegram 331 paragraph two.

Prgoress of Comwission in examination of detainees has
proved slower than expected and it is now likely that they
will be able by March 14th only produce second interim report
covering four or five more out of originel 13 leaving five
or four to be dealt with later. Report will probably advise
prosecution in each of cases specifically mentioned.
Commission will be adjourning on March 14th until following

Tuesday March 19th.

© Crown Copyright
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o e

No. 338 of March 11lth,

My telegram 335.
A. .EEHEFR'S testimony continued. He is still sullen and answvers
have to be dragged out of him but he did talk to some extent under
skilful gquestioning.
B. Like NIGHTINGALE he has followed line of half admission.
That is, he admits to meeting Sam CARR and sgrees that some of
conversation may have touched on questions posed by Russians in
document headed by "Assignment No. 1 - Sam to SHUGAR". He will
not however admit to giving any confidential information though
his reluctance to answer indicates his guilt.
C. He will continue today. Meanvhile the second interim report
is being prepared and is now lik¢ly to be released on Thursday or
.Friday of this week and will include EQEEB bff?HTINGALE SHUGAR
and very likely GFRSON. BOYFR's admission hés 1mp11cate Fred
P29 %y )
ngE_ﬁﬁﬁPlf) This again raises question mentioned in paragraph C.
of my.telegram 299. Method of dealing with ROSE is still under
discussion and it is likely that‘ESEE%ls testimony together with
the recent leak to London "Daily Mirror" will mske some action
concerning him necessary in near future.
D. However ROSE has gone underground and cannot be located at

present by RCIP and it is not impossible that he has already left

country.
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SHUGaR's testimony continued. He is still sullen and answers
have to be dragged out of him but he did talk to some extent under
skilful questioning.
B. Like NIGHTINGALE he has followed line of half admission.
That is, he admits to meeting Sam CARR and agrees that some of
conversation may have touched on questions posed by Russians in
document headed by "Assignment No. 1 - Sam to SHUGAR". He will
not however admit to giving any confidential information though
his reluctance to answer indicates his guilt.
C. He will continue today.
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TOP SECRLT.

No. 335 of 9th March,

My telegram 323,
A. BOYFR completed testimony. Nothing further of interest.
§§Hgﬂghwas taken next, largely because activities of his wife
and his ovn hunger strike are sources of embarrassment.

B. SHUGAR, who is clearly schooled in paity tactics, enswered

"safe" questions concerning his work on ASDIC with reluctant

caution but finally refused to reply to question concerning Fﬁgi
My

members of Communist study group to which he belonged while

at McGill, He persisted when warned that such refusal must

be teken as contempt by Commissioners. He was given until
tomorrow to reconsider his attitude. It is on the whole unlikely
that he will be committed for contempt since this would

eliminate any possibility of extracting even partial admission
from him which would seem essential to substantiate Corby

documents which do not in themselves constitute legal case.
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BOYER completed testimony. Nothing further of interest.
SHUGAR was taken next, largely because activities of his wife
and his own hunger strike are sources of embarrassment.
B. SHUGAR, who is clearly schooled in party tactics, answered
"safe" questions concerning his work on ASDIC with reluctant
caution but finally refused to reply to question concerning
members of Communist study group to which he belonged while
at McGill. He persisted when warned that such refusal must
be taken as contempt by Commissioners. He was given until
tomorrow to reconsider his attitude. It is on the whole unlikely
that he will be committed for contempt since this would
eliminate any possibility of extracting even partial admission
from him which would seem essential to substantiate Corby
documents which do not in themselves constitute legal case.
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TOP SECRET.

Telegram from NE¥ YORK.

No, 331 of 8th Merch. 3 ZZ;I' t

Following for Sargent from MacDonald repeated Halifax.
l. Your telegram 45; para. E. and F. It has now been decided
here that all trials consequent upon the issue of first interim
or subsequent reports of Royel Commission should be held in open
court except that court would probably be closed during hearing
of Corby's evidence in interests of his protection. His
evidence would however be available on record. It follows
that Canadian Authorities would not wish to offer any objection

e - -

tg_;imilar hearing of Primrose case in open court except for
taking of certain technical evidence in camera. Considerable
importance is attached to general equivalence of proceedings;
it is assumed for instance that bail will be refused Primrose

if he applies for it and it is hoped that, mutatis mutandis,

final results will be in relation to each other.

My immediately following telegram.
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It has now been decided
here that all trials consequent upon the issue of first interim
or subsequent reports of Royal Commission should be held in open
court except that court would probably be closed during hearing
of Corby's evidence in intrrests of his protection.
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Telegram from NEV YORK,
No. 3532 of Merch 8th.

My immediately preceding telegram.
Paragraph 2. Trials here will not begin until Commission have
completed their examination all detainees but this is thought
likely to be the case by 1l4th March.
3. It emerges however from our discussions with Commission
Counsel that there is a large area of over-lap between Primrose's
_ MSa i v6. 4)

e admissions (telegram 451) and some of Corbg's evidence which

ought, if possible, to be exploited. No doubt much thought has

been given this aspect already, e.g. paragraph F. telegram 501, Qg‘h.)
A,

but with a view to conforming up cases if and when it is proper

M to do so, it is suggested there may be some method introducing

'a limited statement on Corby's part such as (?might be) subject
\
of a special deposition by him.

My ‘innned:.tately following telegram.

© Crown Copyright
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Telegram from NEW YORK,

No. 333 of March 8th.

My immediately preceding telegram.
4. We also note from same passage that you are considering
poasibility of Primrose's appearance before Commissiony I
understand that I shall now shortly receive a formal request
from Commissioners through iwinister of Justice that Primrose
be mede available’for a personal appearance before Commission

after his case hes been completeds Specifiic method by which

this could be done is admittedly doubtful here, e.g. Counsel

are not themselves yet clear whether you would be able to arrange
that Primrose should be subpoenaed. There is still the possible

1784, v3). 4)

alternative (see my telegrem 24,8 paragraph L) of some method of
teking Primrose's evidence (gr;Twﬁut.) Commission but this is
not now regarded as very satisfactory.

5. Foregoing considerations obviously affect (from Canadian
point of view, date of Primrose's trial. Provided there is

reasonable certainty of conviction then it would help Canadian

authorities if trial could be started and completed as soon as

| possible.

My immediately following telegram.

© Crown Copyright
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Telegram from NEW YORK.

No. 334 of 8th March.

My immediately preceding telegram,

6. Our discussions with Counsel on all metters deelt with

above have suggested to me very strongly that it would be of
greatest help if a representative of Director of Public
Prosecutions could come here for formal or informal consultation
with Commission Counsel with least possible delay. If there
were any techniceal difficulty about such a visit for specific
purpose of liaison with Canadian authorities in connection with
Primrose case it would I imagine be quite easy to find some
other ostensible object for visit, e.g. advising me as regards
member of my staff who has been arrested and charged, in which
case any consultation with Canadians connected with Commission
could be entirely private and "off the record". Conmission
Counsel are strongly in favour of an immediate visit as there
are in fact a nuwber of points in this complex business in which

direct contact would be invaluable,
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Our discussions with Counsel on all matters dealt with
above have suggested to me very strongly that it would be of
greatest help if a representative of Director of Public
Prosecutions could come here for formal or informal consultation
with Commission Counsel with least possible delay.
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TOF SECRET.

Telegrem addressed:
NEW YORK.

No. 528.

Following for RCHP from Hollis.

Your telegram 289. - b (04 .

A. Your para. A. Expert opinion states that these manuals
set out process of manufacture which was never adopted in
prectice and that all material contained therein has since
1939 been of no higher grade than restricted.

B. Preliminary view of experts of remainder of material

is that same conditions apply.

© Crown Copyright
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Telegram addressed:

NEW YORK.

Following for RCHMP from Hollis.

Your telegram 305. — T 124 -

- ——
TITITAL v h

We have no adverse trace of
of JENES:

© Crown Copyright
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No. 321 of Merch 8th.

A. In spite of Commission's first interim report, press on

question of rights of detainees and civil liberties has not

materially decreased, largely as result of agitetion of wives

and lawyers who have been retained but who are not allowed see
clients who have not been charged. Lawyers clearly see in
advance excellent line of define here and are attempting rally
public opinion by press statements of doubtful accuracy based
on dist{yBted facts given in detainees' letters.

B. Situation is further aggravated by another problem which
now faces Canadian authorities,. Counsel to Comunission have
recormended that trials four so far charged should be held in
camera as ?some evidence will inevitably touch on aspects with
which Commission have not yet dealt end which therefore cannot
be made public. On the other hand such procedure will inevitably
raise storum of protest from lawyers and also from press who will
see themselves done out of some first-class copy particularly

if Corby's testimony were required.

My immediately following telegram,
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No. 321 of March 8th.
A. In spite of Commission's first interim report, press on
question of rights of detainees and civil liberties has not
materially decreased, largely as result of agitation of wives
•
and lawyers who have been retained but who are not allowed see
clients who have not been charged. Lawyers clearly see in
advance excellent line of define^here and are attempting rally
public opinion by press statements of doubtful accuracy based
on dis%Qted facts given in detainees' letters.
B. Situation is further aggravated by another problem which
now faces Canadian authorities.-. Counsel to Commission have
recorrcnended that trials four so far charged should be held in
camera as ?some evidence will inevitably touch on aspects with
which Commission have not yet dealt wnd which therefore cannot
be made public. On the other hand such procedure will inevitably
raise storm of protest from lawyers and also from press who will
see themselves done out of some first-class copy particularly
if Corby's testimony were required.
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TOP SECRET.

YAk

No. 322 of March 8th.

by iumediately preceding.telegram.
C. This is &t present under consideration.

1 solution might be contined remands but this will cleerly
not meet demands of situation entirely.
D. Further interim report was planned for Sgturday by which
time it was hoped “BOYER, GERSQN and NIGHTINGALE would have
been dealt with. However, time wasted on trying to extract

truth from last named may well delay second report until

early next week.

© Crown Copyright
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TOP SECRET.
NEW YORK,

No. 323 of March 8th,

A. BOYER gave testimony today. He first joined Communist study

group in Montreal in 1938 and subsequently contributed quite

substantial sums to labour progressive party‘election funds.
He was member of several committees with Communist affiliations

and was on bominion Fxecutive of Canadian association of ecientific

workers. His friends and acquaintances include POLAN%EYSUNAN

BENNING, GERSON, SHUGAR, PRIMOSE, SMITH end of course Fred ROSE. PFg03 608
b M, - L STV L

B. ROSE approached him early in 1943 and asked for information

on R.D.X., making it clear that information was required for

Russia. In series of widely spaced interviews BOYLR gave him

details of new Canadian method of making R.D.X., proportions,

ingredients and uses. ROSE wade notes on each occasion.

He also gave some very general information on R.D.X. pilot-

plant near Grand' Mere, but beyond this he states he was

neither asked for nor gave any other information.

My immediately following telegram.
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TOP SECRET.

- \
No. 32, of 8th March, ‘ f);-ij ép*

My immediately preceding telegram.
C. He makes no atteupt to evade issue bﬁt explains that iE—
seemed logical that ally should not have details of explosive.
He also pointed out that Canadians would have been prepared to
give details if they had not been prevented by United States.
His motivation is similar to that °f~¥§ZEBALL,- dissatisfaction
at lack of scientific exchange with Russia and idealogical hopes
that this might be achieved even by clandestine methods.,
D. BOYER is a highly intelligent men, makes no effort whatever
to ca;er his own (gp. mut.) nor communist activities of his
friends. We are inclined to believe he is telling whole truth.
E. If we are right, it mekes it even clearer that Corby documents

have to be interpreted with greatest care and reservation in some

parts. For instance phrase %S particular interest Hollis -~ "FREDA

C€. Goo6

to Professor through[bRIERSONf - apparently means nothing whatever

to BOYER and it would appear that this was not an established
channel but ?merely exploratory note for future reference.

F. Similarly, since Grandmere plant has nothing to do with
atomic energy, item 29 in volume 5 of Corby documents is either
result of confusion or else deliberate attempt on part of ROSE

to impress his masters euen at expense of accuracy - habit with

© Crown Copyright


clement2
Highlight
He makes no attempt to evade issue "but explains that i f
seemed logical that ally should not have details of explosive.
He also pointed out that Canadians would have been prepared to
give details if they had not been prevented by United States.
His motivation is similar to that of MAZERALL - dissatisfaction
at lack of scientific exchange with Russia and idealogical hopes
that this might be achieved even by clandestine methods.
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BOYER is a highly intelligent man, makes no effort whatever
to cover his own (gp. mut.) nor communist activities of his
friends. We are inclined to believe he is telling whole truth.
E. If we are right, it makes it even clearer that Corby documents
have to be interpreted with greatest care and reservation in some
parts. For instance phrase., of particular interest Hollis - "FREDA,
to Professor through(GRIERSON"/ - apparently means nothing whatever
to BOYER and it would appear that this was not an established
channel but ?merely exploratory note for future reference.
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which we are already familiar from Abwher agents,

Ge BOYFR's testimony continues tomorrow.
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TOP SECREVY .

No. 330 of March 8th.

My telegram 321 paragraph B.
A I am informed.S%t_}ﬁggEyT has categorically refused to
agree to trials being held in camera.
B. Cases will be remended as long as is reasonably possible
by which time it is hoped that bulk of first stage of Commission's

work will be completed.

C. The second stage of Commission which will follow will desl

-

¥ober o
withI?I@Q&@ijassport case and probably with arrest of other

suspected agents not so far apprehended. This stage may also
include new suspects whose names have cone to light who may

possibly be dealt with by subpoena.

© Crown Copyright
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I am informed ST. LAURENT has categorically refused to
agree to trials being held in camera.
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I yesterday saw Win; Commander irnold at '.:..P. and also

AoDs Je Kro.Hollis.

_his successor, Sq/Lrd.Birkbeck, in ccnnaction with the attached

340b 1 314‘:" two telegrams. I gave them the facts and they will obtain

Trtnst ¥ 5, Your para .  Xpert opinion stetes that these ganuals
... sat out a grocess of mamfacture which was never adopted in
" gractice and that all material cuntained therein has, since

- 1339, been of no hicher _rade than Restricted.

from their oroduction sections an expert cpinion with regard
to the sccrecy at the material tiwe of the documents relating
to Hadfield's. I was then iaker to ing.Cowrander Harding of
R.D.arm 4 (a desiygn specielist) in order to cifmin an opinion
on para.i of telegram 289 of llarch 4th. Hardins brought in

- his chief clerk, lxr.Venner, who has been concerned with
matters of design for meny yeers and the latter immediately
recognised the documents referred to, These docunents sei
ou% in great detail a method of wmanufacturing the 250 1b.
S..a.F. bomb. The methcd, however, wes never used in practice,

and I was fold that the documents could not possitly ve regarded

as any higher grade than 'Restricted' and that this was so as
soon as war broke out. The design for this particular bomb
was sealed in 1534 and has for some considerable time hcen
ousolete, “he 500 1b, mark 5 bomb is merely a larger wersicon
of She 250 1b, bomb and Hardin; stated that in his opinion,

what he had said about the latter equally applied to the former

ant that the same weni for any documwents zivin: orcduction
deteils. fle did not think that the details of either Lomhb
bad actually been given to the Russiuns hut he questioned
whether, in the case of such a standard type, the Ruusians
would ever heve baen particularly inter:sted.

I suggest we send the follovin: telegram to Canada ;-

"Tour telecram 289.

3. Zreliminarys view of experfs on remainder @ material

1:' 20 C. -~ |
3. 3.5.6. J H. MarridFe,

THIS 1S A COPY —
ORIGINAL DOCUMENT RETMNED
N DEPARTMENT UNDER SEC 0
3 (4) OF THE PUBLIC RECURLS

‘ ACT 1968. . o)
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TOP SECRET. ' “
| \\. (

Telegram addressed:
NE# YORK.

No. 522,

/2‘4(& -
Your 300 of March 5th.

A. Oyr preliminary reactions are as followé.

B. Much of our information on RADO networl is now fairly public
property and we see no repeat no objection in principle to laying
bulk of it before Commission,

C. Such a course might enable the:. to extract interesting
information fromEéABINOWITCélJ%Fﬁggﬁy‘ﬂLlé for passing money

and correspondence between Switzerland and Canada.

D. On the other hand the RADO problem has extremely wide and
complicated ramifications and we do not repeat not think it
advisable for Commission to plunge into what might be an
interminable investigation.

E. Provided scope of Commission's investigation cen be

limited we are inclined to accede to request in your para. E,

Further telegram will follow.

© Crown Copyright
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THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT
RETAINED IN DEPARTMENT
| UNDER SECTION 3(4) OF

THE PUBLIC RECORDS

ACT 1958 3N 10072
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TOP SECRET.

N

NEW YORK,

No. 314 of March 7th.

A You méy know that in his press statement of February 15th
Drew Pearson stated, inside swipe at State Departient, that
Russian agent named Shimishenko had been ?e.ployed for some
time in USA, was known to FBI who had been forced to allow

him to leav: country in spite of information against him,

B. I have made enquiries of ¥BI who tell me they presume

Pearson was referring to Andrei Nanovich SCHAVCHENKO repeat

e

-

SCHAVCHENﬁgz;zor some time official of Soviet Purchasing Commission
and of Amtorg in USA.

C. They state SCHAVCH"NKO was active agent and made several
efforts to secure restricted information from Bell Aircraft
Company concerning jet propulsion and other technical matters.,

He finally left United States Jenuery 3rd 1946, on board s.s.
Stalingrad bound for Murmansk. .

D. FBI are giving me report. Meanwhile have you any trace.
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v

No. 315 of March 7th.

ot

My telegram 306. ‘%
A. Greater part of entire day has been spent by Commission
with NIGHTINGALE to no purpose.
B. On whole I see no reason to modify opinion given in para,
C. of my telegram 187. M}'ﬂﬁ .
C. I understand that it is probable that some charge will
be laid against him but I am personally of opinion good

defence counsel might possibly get him acquitted.
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